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PART 1. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements.
SKYWORKS SOLUTIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Unaudited, in millions, except per share amounts)
Three Months Ended
June 28,
2019

Net revenue
Cost of goods sold

$

767.0
454.5

Nine Months Ended

June 29,
2018

$

894.3
442.7

June 28,
2019

$

2,549.4
1,351.6

June 29,
2018

$

2,859.6
1,412.5

Gross profit
Operating expenses:
Research and development
Selling, general and administrative
Amortization of intangibles
Restructuring and other charges

312.5

451.6

1,197.8

1,447.1

100.6
46.8
5.5
—

96.8
44.6
3.9
—

317.3
142.5
18.6
1.3

301.5
153.4
12.0
1.0

Total operating expenses

152.9

145.3

479.7

467.9

Operating income
Other income, net

159.6
2.3

306.3
4.5

718.1
8.9

979.2
9.5

Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes

161.9
17.8

310.8
24.3

727.0
84.0

988.7
355.8

$

144.1

$

286.5

$

643.0

$

632.9

Basic

$

0.83

$

1.58

$

3.69

$

3.47

Diluted

$

0.83

$

1.57

$

3.67

$

3.44

Net income
Earnings per share:

Weighted average shares:
Basic
Diluted

172.6
173.4

Cash dividends declared and paid per share

$

0.38

181.2
182.8
$

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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0.32

174.3
175.2
$

1.14

182.3
184.2
$

0.96
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SKYWORKS SOLUTIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Unaudited, in millions)
Three Months Ended
June 28,
2019

Net income
Other comprehensive income
Fair value of investments
Pension adjustments
Foreign currency translation adjustment

$

Comprehensive income

$

144.1

$

0.3
—
—
144.4

286.5

June 28,
2019

$

(0.1)
—
0.1
$

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Nine Months Ended

June 29,
2018

286.5

June 29,
2018

643.0

$

0.5
0.5
—
$

644.0

632.9
(0.1)
—
(0.2)

$

632.6
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SKYWORKS SOLUTIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In millions, except per share amounts)
As of
June 28,
2019

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Marketable securities
Receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $0.7 and $0.6, respectively
Inventory
Other current assets

September 28,
2018

(unaudited)
$

Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Goodwill
Intangible assets, net
Deferred tax assets, net
Marketable securities
Other long-term assets

742.8
192.2
557.8
580.8
132.7

$

2,206.3
1,230.1
1,189.8
114.1
33.7
35.1
33.2

Total assets
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued compensation and benefits
Other current liabilities

733.3
294.1
655.8
490.2
88.8
2,262.2
1,140.9
1,189.8
143.7
36.5
22.8
33.0

$

4,842.3

$

4,828.9

$

218.9
85.2
92.4

$

229.9
85.2
74.6

Total current liabilities
Long-term tax liabilities
Other long-term liabilities

396.5
315.5
30.4

389.7
310.5
31.7

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note 9)
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, no par value: 25.0 shares authorized, no shares issued
Common stock, $0.25 par value: 525.0 shares authorized; 229.8 shares issued and 171.6 shares outstanding at
June 28, 2019, and 228.4 shares issued and 177.4 shares outstanding at September 28, 2018
Additional paid-in capital
Treasury stock, at cost
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

742.4

731.9

—

—

42.9
3,153.3
(3,265.6)
4,177.1
(7.8)

Total stockholders’ equity

44.4
3,061.0
(2,732.5)
3,732.9
(8.8)

4,099.9
$

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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4,842.3

4,097.0
$

4,828.9
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SKYWORKS SOLUTIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(In millions)
Shares of
common stock

Par value of
common stock

Shares of
treasury stock

44.4

51.0

—

—

—

0.7

0.1

0.2

—

—

—

(4.0)

(1.0)

4.0

Dividends declared

—

—

—

—

—

Other comprehensive loss

—

—

—

—

—

43.5

55.2

—

—

—

—

0.3

0.1

0.1

Balance at September 28, 2018
Net income
Exercise and settlement of share based
awards and related tax benefit, net of
shares withheld for taxes
Share-based compensation expense
Stock repurchase program

Balance at December 28, 2018
Net income
Exercise and settlement of share based
awards and related tax benefit, net of
shares withheld for taxes

177.4

174.1

$

$

Value of treasury
stock

Additional paidin capital

$

$

(2,732.5)
—
(19.6)
—
(284.0)

$

(3,036.1)

$

3,061.0

Retained
earnings

$

3,732.9

Accumulated other
comprehensive loss

Total
stockholders’ equity

$

$

(8.8)

4,097.0

—

284.9

—

284.9
(14.4)

5.1

—

—

21.3

—

—

21.3

1.0

—

—

(284.0)

—

(67.1)

3,088.4

(67.1)
—
$

3,950.7

0.6
$

(8.2)

0.6
$

4,038.3

—

214.0

—

214.0

(1.5)

15.5

—

—

14.2

—

21.8

—

—

21.8

0.5

—

—

(141.5)

—

(66.0)

—

—

—

(1.7)

(0.4)

1.7

Dividends declared

—

—

—

—

—

Other comprehensive loss

—

—

—

—

—

43.2

57.0

—

—

—

—

—

144.1

—

144.1

0.2

—

—

(0.7)

7.8

—

—

7.1

—

19.0

—

—

19.0

0.2

—

—

(85.8)

—

(65.7)

Share-based compensation expense
Stock repurchase program

Balance at March 29, 2019
Net income
Exercise and settlement of share based
awards and related tax benefit, net of
shares withheld for taxes

172.7

$

(141.5)

$

(3,179.1)

$

3,126.2

—

—

—

(1.2)

(0.3)

1.2

Dividends declared

—

—

—

—

—

Other comprehensive loss

—

—

—

—

—

Share-based compensation expense
Stock repurchase program

(85.8)

(66.0)
—
$

4,098.7

0.1
$

(65.7)
—

(8.1)

0.1
$

0.3

4,080.9

0.3

Balance at June 28, 2019

171.6

$

42.9

58.2

$

(3,265.6)

$

3,153.3

$

4,177.1

$

(7.8)

$

4,099.9

Balance at September 29, 2017

183.1

$

$

(1,925.0)

$

2,893.8

$

3,059.6

$

(8.5)

$

4,065.7

45.8

42.9

—

—

—

0.9

0.2

0.4

—

—

—

(1.6)

(0.4)

1.6

Dividends declared

—

—

—

—

—

Other comprehensive income

—

—

—

—

—

45.6

44.9

—

—

—

—

0.7

0.2

—

Net income
Exercise and settlement of share based
awards and related tax benefit, net of
shares withheld for taxes
Share-based compensation expense
Stock repurchase program

Balance at December 29, 2017
Net income
Exercise and settlement of share based
awards and related tax benefit, net of
shares withheld for taxes

182.4

$

—

—

(44.7)
—
(172.5)

$

(2,142.2)

$

70.4

—

70.4

14.7

—

—

(29.8)

27.4

(1.9)

—

25.5

0.4

—

—

(172.5)

—

(58.8)

2,936.3

3,069.3

$

(8.5)

—
$

3,900.5

—

276.0

(1.7)

27.7

—

—

26.2

—

38.1

—

—

38.1

0.3

—

—

(111.8)

—

(58.5)

(0.3)

(0.3)

—

—

(0.3)

1.0

Dividends declared

—

—

—

—

—

Other comprehensive income

—

—

—

—

—

(111.8)

5

$

—

276.0

—

Stock repurchase program

—

—

(1.0)

Share-based compensation expense

(58.8)

(58.5)
—
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45.5

45.9

—

—

—

—

0.1

—

—

—

—

—

(2.5)

(0.6)

2.5

Dividends declared

—

—

—

—

—

Other comprehensive income

—

—

—

—

—

44.9

48.4

Balance at March 30, 2018
Net income
Exercise and settlement of share based
awards and related tax benefit, net of
shares withheld for taxes
Share-based compensation expense
Stock repurchase program

Balance at June 29, 2018

182.1

179.7

$

$

$

(2,255.7)

$

6

$

3,286.8

$

(8.8)

$

4,070.2

—

286.5

—

(1.0)

3.6

—

—

2.6

—

21.7

—

—

21.7

—

—

(240.2)

—

(57.8)

(240.2)

$

3,002.4

(2,496.9)

0.6

$

3,028.3

(57.8)
—
$

3,515.4

286.5

—
$

(8.8)

—
$

4,082.9
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SKYWORKS SOLUTIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited, in millions)
Nine Months Ended
June 28,
2019

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Share-based compensation
Depreciation
Amortization of intangible assets, including inventory step-up
Deferred income taxes
Changes in fair value of contingent consideration
Other, net
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net
Inventory
Other current and long-term assets
Accounts payable
Other current and long-term liabilities

$

Net cash provided by operating activities

June 29,
2018

643.0

$

58.6
235.4
43.3
(12.1)
(3.1)
0.1

86.3
198.9
16.5
35.6
(7.8)
0.3

98.0
(89.7)
(44.1)
(24.5)
45.5

(13.7)
(10.2)
(45.8)
(56.3)
216.3

950.4

Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures
Purchased intangibles
Purchases of marketable securities
Sales and maturities of marketable securities
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repurchase of common stock - payroll tax withholdings on equity awards
Repurchase of common stock - stock repurchase program
Dividends paid
Net proceeds from exercise of stock options
Proceeds from employee stock purchase plan
Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

632.9

1,053.0

(314.0)
(11.8)
(243.7)
334.4

(310.0)
(8.6)
(523.2)
32.6

(235.1)

(809.2)

(21.6)
(511.3)
(198.8)
14.6
11.3

(47.5)
(524.5)
(175.2)
34.8
9.9

(705.8)

(702.5)

9.5
733.3

(458.7)
1,616.8

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

$

742.8

$

1,158.1

Supplemental cash flow disclosures:
Income taxes paid

$

116.5

$

117.1

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Skyworks Solutions, Inc., together with its consolidated subsidiaries (“Skyworks” or the “Company”), is empowering the wireless networking revolution. The
Company’s analog semiconductors are connecting people, places, and things, spanning a number of new applications within the aerospace, automotive,
broadband, cellular infrastructure, connected home, industrial, medical, military, smartphone, tablet and wearable markets.
The accompanying unaudited interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) for interim financial reporting. Certain information and footnote disclosures, normally included in annual consolidated
financial statements prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”), have been condensed
or omitted pursuant to those rules and regulations. However, in management’s opinion, the financial information reflects all adjustments, including those of a
normal recurring nature, necessary to present fairly the results of operations, financial position, and cash flows of the Company for the periods presented. The
results of operations, financial position, and cash flows for the Company during the interim periods are not necessarily indicative of those expected for the
full year. This information should be read in conjunction with the Company’s financial statements and notes thereto contained in the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 28, 2018, filed with the SEC on November 15, 2018, as amended by Amendment No. 1 to such
Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed with the SEC on January 25, 2019 (the “2018 10-K”).
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenue, expenses, comprehensive income and accumulated other comprehensive loss that are reported in these unaudited consolidated financial
statements and accompanying disclosures. The Company evaluates its estimates on an ongoing basis using historical experience and other factors, including
the current economic environment. Significant judgment is required in determining the reserves for and fair value of items such as overall fair value
assessments of assets and liabilities, particularly those classified as Level 2 or Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy, marketable securities, inventory, intangible
assets associated with business combinations, share-based compensation, loss contingencies, and income taxes. In addition, significant judgment is required
in determining whether a potential indicator of impairment of long-lived assets exists and in estimating future cash flows for any necessary impairment
testing. Actual results could differ significantly from these estimates.
The Company’s fiscal year ends on the Friday closest to September 30. Fiscal 2019 consists of 52 weeks and ends on September 27, 2019. Fiscal 2018
consisted of 52 weeks and ended on September 28, 2018. The third quarters of fiscal 2019 and 2018 each consisted of 13 weeks and ended on June 28, 2019,
and June 29, 2018, respectively.
Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements
In August 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) deferred the effective date of Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2014-09, Revenue
from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), (“ASU 2014-09”), which outlines a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. The Company adopted ASU 2014-09 at the beginning of the first quarter of fiscal 2019 using the modified
retrospective approach, with the cumulative effect of applying the new guidance recognized as an adjustment to the opening retained earnings balance. The
Company has determined the impact of the new revenue standard on its business processes, systems, controls and consolidated financial statements is not
material. Refer to Note 2, Revenue Recognition, for additional information.
In October 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-16, Income Taxes (Topic 740), Intra-entity Transfers of an Asset Other than Inventory (“ASU 2016-16”). This
ASU provides guidance that changes the accounting for income tax effects of intra-entity transfers of assets other than inventory. Under the new guidance, the
selling (transferring) entity is required to recognize a current tax expense or benefit upon transfer of the asset. Similarly, the purchasing (receiving) entity is
required to recognize a deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability, as well as the related deferred tax benefit or expense, upon receipt of the asset. The
Company adopted ASU 2016-16 during the first quarter of fiscal 2019. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.
In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments (Topic 320), (“ASU 2016-13”). This ASU requires a
financial asset (or a group of financial assets) measured on the basis of amortized cost to be presented at the net amount expected to be collected. This ASU
requires that the income statement reflect the measurement of credit losses for newly recognized financial assets as well as the expected increases or decreases
of expected credit losses that have taken place during the period. This ASU requires that credit losses of debt securities designated as available-for-sale be
recorded through an allowance for credit losses. The ASU also limits the credit loss to the amount by which fair value is below
8
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amortized cost. The Company adopted ASU 2016-13 during the first quarter of fiscal 2019. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01, Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Topic 320), (“ASU 2016-01”).
This ASU provides guidance for the recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of financial assets and liabilities. The Company adopted ASU
2016-01 during the first quarter of fiscal 2019. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.
In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-07, Compensation-Stock Compensation (Topic 718), Improvements to Nonemployee Share-based Payments (“ASU
2018-07”). This ASU expands the scope of Topic 718 to include share-based payment transactions for acquiring goods and services from nonemployees. The
Company adopted ASU 2018-07 during the second quarter of fiscal 2019. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.
In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-15, Intangibles-Goodwill and Other-Internal-Use Software (Topic 350), Customer’s Accounting for
Implementation Costs Incurred in a Cloud Computing Arrangement That Is a Service Contract (“ASU 2018-15”). The new guidance clarifies the accounting
for implementation costs in cloud computing arrangements. The Company adopted ASU 2018-15, on a prospective basis, during the second quarter of fiscal
2019. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) (“ASU 2016-02”). This ASU requires lessees to reflect leases with a term greater than
one year on their balance sheet as assets and obligations. The Company plans to adopt the new guidance in the first quarter of fiscal 2020. The Company will
utilize the modified retrospective method and will recognize any cumulative effect adjustment in retained earnings at the beginning of the period of
adoption. The Company plans to elect the package of three practical expedients that permits the Company to maintain its historical conclusions about lease
identification, lease classification and initial direct costs for leases that exist at the date of adoption. Further, upon implementation of the new guidance, the
Company intends to elect the practical expedient to not separate lease and non-lease components. The Company has performed an assessment of the impact
that the adoption of ASU 2016-02 will have on the consolidated financial statements and related disclosures. Based on that assessment, the Company has
estimated that the adoption of ASU 2016-02 will result in the recognition of approximately $150 million to $170 million of right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities based on the present value of future minimum lease payments for currently executed leases. The Company does not expect the adoption of this new
guidance to have a significant impact on its Consolidated Statements of Operations or its Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.
Supplemental Cash Flow Information
At June 28, 2019, the Company had $13.9 million accrued to other long-term liabilities for capital equipment, and $80.6 million accrued to accounts payable
for capital equipment. At September 28, 2018, the Company had $13.9 million accrued to other long-term liabilities for capital equipment, and $94.1 million
accrued to accounts payable for capital equipment. These amounts accrued at June 28, 2019, for capital equipment purchases have been excluded from the
consolidated statements of cash flows for the nine months ended June 28, 2019, and are expected to be paid in subsequent periods.
2. REVENUE RECOGNITION
Change in Accounting Policy
The Company adopted ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), in the first quarter of fiscal 2019 for open contracts not
completed as of the adoption date using the modified retrospective approach. The impact from the cumulative effect adjustment was not material and
comparative information for prior periods has not been adjusted. The impact of applying the new standard on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the nine months ended June 28, 2019, was not material, except for an increase in accounts receivable and other current liabilities in the amount
of $29.4 million to reflect customer credits as a liability.
Revenue Recognition Policy
The Company derives its revenue primarily from the sale of semiconductor products under individual customer purchase orders, some of which have
underlying master sales agreements that specify terms governing the product sales. In the absence of a sales agreement, the Company’s standard terms and
conditions apply. Revenue is recognized when control of the promised goods or services is transferred to the Company’s customers, in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company applies a five-step approach as defined
in the new standard in determining the amount and timing of revenue to be recognized: (1) identifying the contract with a customer; (2) identifying the
performance obligations in the contract; (3) determining the transaction price; (4) allocating the transaction
9
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price to the performance obligations in the contract; and (5) recognizing revenue when the corresponding performance obligation is satisfied.
Performance Obligations
Each distinct promise to transfer products is considered to be an identified performance obligation for which revenue is recognized at a point in time upon
transfer of control of the products to the customer. Transfer of control occurs upon shipment to the distributor or direct customer or when products are pulled
from consignment inventory by the customer. Point in time recognition is determined as products manufactured under non-cancellable orders create an asset
with an alternative use to the Company. Returns under the Company’s general assurance warranty of products have not been material and warranty-related
services are not considered a separate performance obligation. As of June 28, 2019, the amount of remaining performance obligation that has not been
recognized as revenue is not material.
Transaction Price
Pricing adjustments and estimates of returns are treated as variable consideration for purposes of determining the transaction price. Sales returns are generally
accepted at the Company’s discretion or from distributors with stock rotation rights. Stock rotation allows distributors limited levels of returns and is based
on the distributor’s prior purchases. Price protection represents price discounts granted to certain distributors and is based on negotiations on sales to end
customers. Variable consideration is estimated using the expected value method considering all reasonably available information, including the Company’s
historical experience and its current expectations, and is reflected in the transaction price when sales are recorded. The Company records net revenue
excluding taxes collected on its sales to trade customers.
Contract Balances
Accounts receivable represents the Company’s unconditional right to receive consideration from its customer. Payments are due within one year of invoicing
and do not include a significant financing component. To date, there have been no material impairment losses on accounts receivable. There were no material
contract assets or contract liabilities recorded on the consolidated balance sheet in any of the periods presented. All incremental customer contract
acquisition costs are expensed as they are incurred as the amortization period of the asset that the Company otherwise would have recognized is one year or
less in duration.
Disaggregate Revenue
The Company has a single reportable operating segment which designs, develops, manufactures and markets similar proprietary semiconductor products,
including intellectual property. In reaching this conclusion, management considers the definition of the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), how the
business is defined by the CODM, the nature of the information provided to the CODM and how that information is used to make operating decisions,
allocate resources and assess performance. The Company’s CODM is the president and chief executive officer. The results of operations provided to and
analyzed by the CODM are at the consolidated level, and accordingly, key resource decisions and assessment of performance are performed at the
consolidated level. The Company assesses its determination of operating segments at least annually.
The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by geography as it believes that doing so best depicts how the nature, amount, timing
and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors. Net revenue by geographic area is presented based upon the location of the
original equipment manufacturers’ (“OEMs”) headquarters and is as follows (in millions):
Three Months Ended
June 28,
2019

United States
China
South Korea
Taiwan
Europe, Middle East and Africa
Other Asia-Pacific
Total

Nine Months Ended

June 29,
2018

June 28,
2019

June 29,
2018

$

355.7
212.9
76.9
78.0
36.4
7.0

$

390.2
272.6
94.2
90.9
40.7
5.7

$

1,358.9
606.8
282.0
182.8
100.2
18.7

$

1,436.9
714.3
331.0
252.5
108.0
16.9

$

767.0

$

894.3

$

2,549.4

$

2,859.6

The Company’s revenue from external customers is generated principally from the sale of semiconductor products that facilitate various wireless
communication applications. Accordingly, the Company considers its product offerings to be similar in nature and therefore not segregated for reporting
purposes.
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3. MARKETABLE SECURITIES
The Company's portfolio of available-for-sale marketable securities consists of the following (in millions):
Current

Noncurrent

Available for sale:

June 28, 2019

September 28,
2018

June 28, 2019

September 28,
2018

U.S. Treasury and government
Corporate bonds and notes
Municipal bonds
Other government

$

44.4
83.9
62.6
1.3

$

65.0
204.1
2.0
23.0

$

10.0
10.5
14.6
—

$

—
12.0
0.8
10.0

Total

$

192.2

$

294.1

$

35.1

$

22.8

The contractual maturities of noncurrent available-for-sale marketable securities were due within two years or less. There were unrealized gains of $0.1
million on U.S. Treasury securities, $0.1 million on corporate bonds and notes, and $0.1 million on municipal bonds at June 28, 2019, and $0.1 million in
unrealized losses on municipal bonds at September 28, 2018.
4. FAIR VALUE
Assets and Liabilities Measured and Recorded at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis
The Company groups its financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis in three levels, based on the markets in which the assets and
liabilities are traded and the reliability of the assumptions used to determine fair value. These levels are:
• Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
• Level 2 - Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets with insufficient
volume or infrequent transactions (less active markets), or model-driven valuations in which all significant inputs are observable or can be derived
principally from, or corroborated with, observable market data.
• Level 3 - Fair value is derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant inputs are unobservable, including assumptions and
judgments made by the Company.
Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value on a recurring basis consisted of the following (in millions):
As of September 28, 2018

As of June 28, 2019
Fair Value Measurements
Total

Level 1

Level 2

Fair Value Measurements

Level 3

Total

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents*

$

742.8

$

696.4

$

46.4

U.S. Treasury and government securities

54.4

20.3

34.1

Corporate bonds and notes

94.4

—

94.4

Municipal bonds

77.2

—

77.2

1.3

—

1.3

Other government securities

$

—

$

—
—
—
—

733.3

$

683.7

$

49.6

65.0

15.0

50.0

216.0

—

216.0

2.8

—

2.8

33.1

—

33.1

$

—

—
—
—
—

$

970.1

$

716.7

$

253.4

$

—

$

1,050.2

$

698.7

$

351.5

$

—

Contingent consideration

$

—

$

—

$

—

$

—

$

3.1

$

—

$

—

$

3.1

Total

$

—

$

—

$

—

$

—

$

3.1

$

—

$

—

$

3.1

Total
Liabilities

* Cash equivalents included in level 1 and 2 consist of money market funds and corporate bonds and notes, foreign government bonds, commercial paper,
and agency securities purchased with less than ninety days until maturity.
The following table summarizes changes to the fair value of the Level 3 liabilities during the three and nine months ended June 28, 2019 (in millions):
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Contingent consideration

Balance as of September 28, 2018
Decreases to contingent consideration included in earnings

$

3.1
(3.1)

Balance as of June 28, 2019

$

—

Assets Measured and Recorded at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis
The Company’s non-financial assets and liabilities, such as goodwill, intangible assets, and other long-lived assets resulting from business combinations, are
measured at fair value using income approach valuation methodologies at the date of acquisition and are subsequently re-measured if there are indicators of
impairment. There were no indicators of impairment identified during the three and nine months ended June 28, 2019.
5.

INVENTORY

Inventory consists of the following (in millions):
As of
June 28,
2019

Raw materials
Work-in-process
Finished goods
Finished goods held on consignment by customers
Total inventory

6.

September 28,
2018

$

20.3
349.2
208.3
3.0

$

20.2
340.7
124.8
4.5

$

580.8

$

490.2

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Property, plant and equipment, net consists of the following (in millions):
As of
June 28,
2019

Land and improvements
Buildings and improvements
Furniture and fixtures
Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress

$

Total property, plant and equipment, gross
Accumulated depreciation

$

2,862.5
(1,632.4)
$

Total property, plant and equipment, net

7.

11.7
349.6
32.4
2,282.9
185.9

September 28,
2018

1,230.1

11.6
238.0
31.5
2,089.6
179.0
2,549.7
(1,408.8)

$

1,140.9

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

There were no changes to the carrying amount of goodwill during the three and nine months ended June 28, 2019.
The Company tests its goodwill for impairment annually as of the first day of its fourth fiscal quarter and in interim periods if certain events occur indicating
the carrying value of goodwill may be impaired. There were no indicators of impairment noted during the three and nine months ended June 28, 2019.
12

Table of Contents

Intangible assets consist of the following (in millions):

Weighted
Average
Amortization
Period (Years)

Gross
Carrying
Amount

$

As of

As of

June 28, 2019

September 28, 2018
Net
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

31.7

3.4

Developed technology and other

4.1

100.0

(46.4)

53.6

89.9

(23.5)

Trademarks

3.0

1.6

(1.2)

0.4

1.6

(0.8)

0.8

Capitalized software

2.7

29.3

(13.0)

16.3

18.0

(6.0)

12.0

Total intangible assets

(23.8)

35.9
$

198.5

$

7.9

—
$

(84.4)

$

Net
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Customer relationships

IPR&D

$

Gross
Carrying
Amount

31.7

35.9
$

114.1

$

(13.2)

46.0
$

$

18.5
66.4

—

187.2

$

46.0

(43.5)

$

143.7

Fully amortized intangible assets have been eliminated from both the gross and accumulated amortization amounts.
Annual amortization expense for the next five fiscal years related to definite-lived intangible assets is expected to be as follows (in millions):
Remaining 2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

Thereafter

Amortization expense, cost of goods sold
Amortization expense, operating expense

$
$

7.3
5.4

$
$

27.0
16.6

$
$

4.9
9.3

$
$

1.0
0.9

$
$

0.9
0.1

$
$

2.8
2.0

Total amortization expense

$

12.7

$

43.6

$

14.2

$

1.9

$

1.0

$

4.8

8.

INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes consists of the following components (in millions):
Three Months Ended
June 28,
2019

United States income taxes
Foreign income taxes
Provision for income taxes

Nine Months Ended

June 29,
2018

June 28,
2019

June 29,
2018

$

1.8
16.0

$

16.0
8.3

$

52.7
31.3

$

328.7
27.1

$

17.8

$

24.3

$

84.0

$

355.8

Effective tax rate

11.0%

7.8%

11.6%

36.0%

The difference between the Company’s effective tax rate and the 21.0% United States federal statutory rate for the three and nine months ended June 28,
2019, resulted primarily from foreign earnings taxed at rates lower than the federal statutory rate, a benefit from foreign derived intangible income deduction
(“FDII”), and research and experimentation and foreign tax credits earned, partially offset by a tax on global intangible low-taxed income (“GILTI”), and an
increase in tax expense related to a change in the reserve for uncertain tax positions.
The difference between the Company’s effective tax rate and the 24.6% United States federal statutory rate for the three and nine months ended June 29,
2018, resulted primarily from a decrease to tax expense related to an adjustment to the mandatory deemed repatriation tax on foreign earnings, foreign
earnings taxed at rates lower than the federal statutory rate, the domestic production activities deduction, research and experimentation tax credits earned,
and a benefit related to windfall stock deductions, partially offset by an increase in tax expense related to a change in the reserve for uncertain tax positions.
During the nine months ended June 29, 2018, these amounts in the table above included a one-time charge of $238.0 million related to the mandatory
deemed repatriation tax on foreign earnings and a one-time charge of $18.5 million related to the revaluation of the deferred tax assets and liabilities related
to tax reform.
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On December 22, 2017, the President of the United States signed into law new tax legislation (the “Tax Reform Act”). In addition to the introduction of a
modified territorial tax system, the Tax Reform Act includes two new sets of provisions aimed at preventing or decreasing U.S. tax base erosion—the GILTI
provisions and the base erosion and anti-abuse tax (“BEAT”) provisions. The GILTI provisions impose taxes on foreign income in excess of a deemed return
on tangible assets of foreign corporations. The Company is making an accounting policy election to account for GILTI as a component of tax expense in the
period in which the Company is subject to the rules and therefore will not provide any deferred tax impacts of GILTI in its consolidated financial statements
for the three and nine months ended June 28, 2019. The BEAT provisions eliminate the deduction of certain base-erosion payments made to related foreign
corporations, and impose a minimum tax if greater than regular tax. These BEAT provisions are effective for the Company beginning in fiscal 2019. The
Company has analyzed the BEAT provisions for the three and nine months ended June 28, 2019, and is not subject to the minimum tax imposed by the
BEAT provisions. Other significant provisions of the Tax Reform Act that are effective in fiscal 2019 and that have an impact on the Company’s income
taxes include the inclusion of performance-based compensation in determining the excessive compensation limitation and the benefit related to FDII.
The Company operates under a tax holiday in Singapore, which is effective through September 30, 2020. The Company has completed negotiations for an
extension of this tax holiday through September 30, 2030. The current tax holiday and extension are both conditioned upon the Company's compliance with
certain employment and investment thresholds in Singapore.
Accrued taxes of $26.2 million and $43.8 million have been included in other current liabilities within the consolidated balance sheets as of June 28, 2019,
and September 28, 2018, respectively. The deemed repatriation tax is payable over the next seven years, $18.0 million per year for each of the next four years,
followed by payments of $33.6 million, $44.9 million, and $56.1 million in years five through seven, respectively. The Company has accrued $188.6 million
and $206.6 million of the deemed repatriation tax in long-term liabilities within the consolidated balance sheet as of June 28, 2019, and September 28, 2018,
respectively.
9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Legal Matters
From time to time, various lawsuits, claims and proceedings have been, and may in the future be, instituted or asserted against the Company, including those
pertaining to patent infringement, intellectual property, environmental hazards, product liability and warranty, safety and health, employment and
contractual matters.
The semiconductor industry is characterized by vigorous protection and pursuit of intellectual property rights. From time to time, third parties have asserted
and may in the future assert patent, copyright, trademark and other intellectual property rights to technologies that are important to the Company’s business
and have demanded and may in the future demand that the Company license their technology. The outcome of any such litigation cannot be predicted with
certainty and some such lawsuits, claims or proceedings may be disposed of unfavorably to the Company. Generally speaking, intellectual property disputes
often have a risk of injunctive relief, which, if imposed against the Company, could materially and adversely affect the Company’s financial condition, or
results of operations. From time to time the Company may also be involved in legal proceedings in the ordinary course of business.
The Company monitors the status of legal proceedings and other contingencies on an ongoing basis to ensure loss contingencies are recognized and/or
disclosed in its financial statements and footnotes. The Company does not believe there are any pending legal proceedings that are reasonably possible to
result in a material loss. The Company is engaged in various legal actions in the normal course of business and, while there can be no assurances, the
Company believes the outcome of all pending litigation involving the Company will not have, individually or in the aggregate, a material adverse effect on
its business or financial statements.
Guarantees and Indemnifications
The Company has made no significant contractual guarantees for the benefit of third parties. However, the Company generally indemnifies its customers from
third-party intellectual property infringement litigation claims related to its products and, on occasion, also provides other indemnities related to product
sales. In connection with certain facility leases, the Company has indemnified its lessors for certain claims arising from the facility or the lease.
The Company indemnifies its directors and officers to the maximum extent permitted under the laws of the state of Delaware. The duration of the indemnities
varies, and in many cases is indefinite. The indemnities to customers in connection with product sales generally are subject to limits based upon the amount
of the related product sales and in many cases are subject to geographic and other restrictions. In certain instances, the Company’s indemnities do not provide
for any limitation of the maximum potential future payments the Company could be obligated to make. The Company has not recorded any liability for these
indemnities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and does not expect that such obligations will have a material adverse impact on its financial
statements.
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10.

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Stock Repurchase Program
On January 30, 2019, the Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program, pursuant to which the Company is authorized to repurchase up to $2.0
billion of its common stock from time to time prior to January 30, 2021, on the open market or in privately negotiated transactions, as permitted by securities
laws and other legal requirements. This newly authorized stock repurchase plan replaced in its entirety the January 31, 2018, stock repurchase program. The
timing and amount of any shares of the Company’s common stock that are repurchased under the new repurchase program will be determined by the
Company’s management based on its evaluation of market conditions and other factors.
During the three months ended June 28, 2019, the Company paid $85.8 million (including commissions) in connection with the repurchase of 1.2 million
shares of its common stock (paying an average price of $72.20 per share). During the nine months ended June 28, 2019, the Company paid $511.3 million
(including commissions) in connection with the repurchase of 6.9 million shares of its common stock (paying an average price of $73.85 per share). As of
June 28, 2019, $1.8 billion remained available under the existing stock repurchase authorization.
Dividends
On August 7, 2019, the Company announced that the Board of Directors had declared a cash dividend on its common stock of $0.44 per share, payable on
September 17, 2019, to the Company’s stockholders of record as of the close of business on August 27, 2019.
During the three and nine months ended June 28, 2019, dividends charged to retained earnings were as follows (in millions, except per share data):
2019
Per share

Total Amount

First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter

$

0.38
0.38
0.38

$

67.1
66.0
65.7

Total

$

1.14

$

198.8

Share-based Compensation
The following table summarizes the share-based compensation expense by line item in the Statements of Operations (in millions):
Three Months Ended
June 28,
2019

Nine Months Ended

June 29,
2018

June 28,
2019

June 29,
2018

Cost of goods sold
Research and development
Selling, general and administrative

$

1.3
9.5
5.2

$

3.3
6.5
9.7

$

8.2
31.9
18.5

$

11.6
32.2
42.5

Total share-based compensation

$

16.0

$

19.5

$

58.6

$

86.3

11.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
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The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share (in millions, except per share amounts):
Three Months Ended
June 28,
2019

$

Net income

Nine Months Ended

June 29,
2018

144.1

$

June 28,
2019

286.5

$

June 29,
2018

643.0

$

632.9

Weighted average shares outstanding – basic
Dilutive effect of equity based awards

172.6
0.8

181.2
1.6

174.3
0.9

182.3
1.9

Weighted average shares outstanding – diluted

173.4

182.8

175.2

184.2

Net income per share – basic

$

0.83

$

1.58

$

3.69

$

3.47

Net income per share – diluted

$

0.83

$

1.57

$

3.67

$

3.44

Anti-dilutive common stock equivalents

1.0

0.2

1.5

0.2

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number of shares of the Company’s common stock outstanding
during the period. The calculation of diluted earnings per share includes the dilutive effect of equity based awards that were outstanding during the three and
nine months ended June 28, 2019, and June 29, 2018, using the treasury stock method. Certain of the Company’s outstanding share-based awards, noted in
the table above, were excluded because they were anti-dilutive, but they could become dilutive in the future.
Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
This report and other documents we have filed with the SEC contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), and are subject to
the “safe harbor” created by those sections. Words such as “anticipates,” “believes,” “continue,” “could,” “estimates,” “expects,” “intends,” “may,” “plans,”
“potential,” “predicts,” “seek,” “should,” “will,” “would,” and similar expressions or variations or negatives of such words are intended to identify forwardlooking statements, but are not the exclusive means of identifying forward-looking statements in this report. Additionally, statements concerning future
matters such as the development of new products, enhancements of technologies, sales levels, expense levels and other statements regarding matters that are
not historical are forward-looking statements. Although forward-looking statements in this report reflect the good faith judgment of our management, such
statements can only be based on facts and factors currently known by us. Consequently, forward-looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties
and actual results and outcomes may differ materially and adversely from the results and outcomes discussed in or anticipated by the forward-looking
statements. A number of important factors could cause actual results to differ materially and adversely from those in the forward-looking statements. We urge
you to consider the risks and uncertainties discussed in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and the 2018 10-K, under the heading “Risk Factors” and in the
other documents we have filed with the SEC in evaluating our forward-looking statements. We have no plans, and undertake no obligation, to revise or
update our forward-looking statements to reflect any event or circumstance that may arise after the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. We caution
readers not to place undue reliance upon any such forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date made.
In this document, the words “we,” “our,” “ours” and “us” refer only to Skyworks Solutions, Inc. and its subsidiaries and not any other person or entity.
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
THREE AND NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 28, 2019, AND JUNE 29, 2018
The following table sets forth the results of our operations expressed as a percentage of net revenue:
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Three Months Ended
June 28,
2019

Net revenue
Cost of goods sold

Nine Months Ended

June 29,
2018

June 28,
2019

June 29,
2018

100.0%
59.3

100.0%
49.5

100.0%
53.0

100.0%
49.4

Gross profit
Operating expenses:
Research and development
Selling, general and administrative
Amortization of intangibles
Restructuring and other charges

40.7

50.5

47.0

50.6

13.1
6.1
0.7
—

10.8
5.0
0.4
—

12.4
5.6
0.7
0.1

10.5
5.4
0.4
—

Total operating expenses

19.9

16.2

18.8

16.3

Operating income
Other income, net

20.8
0.3

34.3
0.5

28.2
0.2

34.3
0.2

Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes

21.1
2.3

34.8
2.7

28.4
3.3

34.5
12.4

Net income

18.8%

32.1%

25.1%

22.1%

OVERVIEW
We, together with our consolidated subsidiaries, are empowering the wireless networking revolution. Our analog semiconductors are connecting people,
places, and things spanning a number of new applications within the aerospace, automotive, broadband, cellular infrastructure, connected home, industrial,
medical, military, smartphone, tablet and wearable markets.
GENERAL
During the nine months ended June 28, 2019, the following key factors contributed to our overall results of operations, financial position and cash flows:
•

Net revenue decreased by 10.8% to $2,549.4 million for the nine months ended June 28, 2019, as compared with the corresponding period in fiscal
2018. This decrease in revenue was primarily driven by weakness in smartphone demand, partially offset by the increasing number of applications of
the Internet of Things, our expanding analog product portfolio supporting new vertical markets including automotive, consumer, industrial,
infrastructure, medical, and military, and our success in capturing a higher share of the increasing radio frequency and analog content per device as
smartphone models continue to evolve.

•

Our ending cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities balance decreased 7.6% to $970.1 million as of June 28, 2019, from $1,050.2 million as
of September 28, 2018. This decrease in cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities during the nine months ended June 28, 2019, was primarily
the result of the repurchase of 6.9 million shares of common stock for $511.3 million, capital expenditures of $314.0 million, and dividend
payments of $198.8 million, partially offset by cash generated from operations of $950.4 million.

NET REVENUE
Three Months Ended
June 28,
2019

Nine Months Ended
June 29,
2018

Change

June 28,
2019

June 29,
2018

Change

(dollars in millions)

Net revenue

$

767.0

(14.2)%

$

894.3

$

2,549.4

(10.8)%

$

2,859.6

We market and sell our products directly to OEMs of communications and electronics products, third-party original design manufacturers and contract
manufacturers, and indirectly through electronic components distributors. We generally experience seasonal peaks during our fourth and first fiscal quarters,
primarily as a result of increased worldwide production of consumer electronics in anticipation of increased holiday sales, whereas our second and third fiscal
quarters are typically lower and in line with seasonal industry trends.
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We generated net revenue of $767.0 million for the three months ended June 28, 2019, a decrease of $127.3 million or 14.2%, as compared with $894.3
million for the corresponding period in fiscal 2018. Net revenue decreased by 10.8% or $310.2 million to $2,549.4 million for the nine months
ended June 28, 2019, as compared with $2,859.6 million for the corresponding period in fiscal 2018. This decrease in net revenue for the three and nine
months ended June 28, 2019, is primarily related to weakness in smartphone demand, partially offset by the increasing number of applications of the Internet
of Things, our expanding analog product portfolio supporting new vertical markets including automotive, consumer, industrial, infrastructure, medical, and
military, and our success in capturing a higher share of the increasing radio frequency and analog content per device as smartphone models continue to
evolve. Additionally, net revenue for the three and nine months ended June 28, 2019, was adversely impacted as a result of the U.S. Bureau of Industry and
Security of the U.S. Department of Commerce placing Huawei Technologies Co., Ltd. and certain of its affiliates (collectively, “Huawei”) on the Bureau’s
Entity List (the “Entity List”).
GROSS PROFIT
Three Months Ended
June 28,
2019

Nine Months Ended
June 29,
2018

Change

June 28,
2019

June 29,
2018

Change

(dollars in millions)

Gross profit
% of net revenue

$

312.5
40.7%

(30.8)%

$

451.6
50.5%

$

1,197.8
47.0%

(17.2)%

$

1,447.1
50.6%

Gross profit represents net revenue less cost of goods sold. Our cost of goods sold consists primarily of purchased materials, labor and overhead (including
depreciation and share-based compensation expense) associated with product manufacturing. Erosion of average selling prices of established products is
typical of the semiconductor industry. As part of our normal course of business, we mitigate the gross margin impact of declining average selling prices with
efforts to increase unit volumes, reduce material costs, improve manufacturing efficiencies, lower manufacturing costs of existing products and by
introducing new and higher value-added products.
Th e $139.1 million decrease in gross profit for the three months ended June 28, 2019, as compared with the corresponding period in fiscal 2018, was
primarily the result of lower average selling prices and lower unit volumes with a gross profit impact of $106.9 million. In addition, we incurred a $66.6
million inventory-related charge due to lower expected demand as a result of Huawei being added to the Entity List. These negative impacts were partially
offset by favorable product mix that positively impacted gross profit by $34.4 million. Gross profit margin decreased to 40.7% of net revenue for the three
months ended June 28, 2019, as compared with 50.5% in the corresponding period in fiscal 2018.
The $249.3 million decrease in gross profit for the nine months ended June 28, 2019, as compared with the corresponding period in fiscal 2018, was primarily
the result of lower average selling prices and lower unit volumes with a gross profit impact of $405.7 million. In addition, we incurred a $66.6 million
inventory-related charge due to lower expected demand as a result of Huawei being added to the Entity List. These negative impacts were partially offset by
favorable product mix that positively impacted gross profit by $223.0 million. Gross profit margin decreased to 47.0% of net revenue for the nine months
ended June 28, 2019, as compared with 50.6% in the corresponding period in fiscal 2018.
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Three Months Ended
June 28,
2019

Nine Months Ended
June 29,
2018

Change

June 28,
2019

June 29,
2018

Change

(dollars in millions)

Research and development
% of net revenue

$

100.6
13.1%

3.9%

$

96.8
10.8%

$

317.3
12.4%

5.2%

$

301.5
10.5%

Research and development expenses consist primarily of direct personnel costs including share-based compensation expense, costs for pre-production
evaluation and testing of new devices, masks, engineering prototypes and design tool costs.
The increase in research and development expenses for the three and nine months ended June 28, 2019, as compared with the corresponding periods in fiscal
2018, was primarily related to an increase in employee-related compensation expense and product development–related expenses. Research and
development expense increased as a percentage of net revenue, when compared with
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the corresponding periods in fiscal 2018, as a result of our increased investment in developing new technologies and products, as well as the decrease in net
revenue.
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Three Months Ended
June 28,
2019

Nine Months Ended
June 29,
2018

Change

June 28,
2019

June 29,
2018

Change

(dollars in millions)

Selling, general and administrative
% of net revenue

$

46.8
6.1%

4.9%

$

44.6
5.0%

$

142.5
5.6%

(7.1)%

$

153.4
5.4%

Selling, general and administrative expenses include legal and related costs, accounting, treasury, human resources, information systems, customer service,
bad debt expense, sales commissions, share-based compensation expense, advertising, marketing, costs associated with business combinations completed or
contemplated during the period and other costs.
The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses for the three months ended June 28, 2019, as compared with the corresponding period in fiscal
2018, was primarily related to increases in legal and software costs. Selling, general and administrative expenses for the three months ended June 28, 2019,
increased as a percentage of net revenue, as compared with the corresponding period in fiscal 2018, primarily due to the decrease in net revenue.
The decrease in selling, general and administrative expenses for the nine months ended June 28, 2019, as compared with the corresponding period in fiscal
2018, was primarily related to a decrease in share-based compensation expense. Selling, general and administrative expenses for the nine months ended
June 28, 2019, increased as a percentage of net revenue, as compared with the corresponding period in fiscal 2018, due to the decrease in net revenue.
AMORTIZATION OF INTANGIBLES
Three Months Ended
June 28,
2019

Nine Months Ended
June 29,
2018

Change

June 28,
2019

June 29,
2018

Change

(dollars in millions)

Amortization of intangibles, including inventory step-up
% of net revenue

$

14.7
1.9%

162.5%

$

5.6
0.6%

$

43.3
1.7%

162.4%

$

16.5
0.6%

During the three and nine months ended June 28, 2019, $9.2 million and $24.7 million in amortization of intangibles were included in cost of goods sold,
respectively, and $5.5 million and $18.6 million in amortization of intangibles were included in selling, general and administrative expense,
respectively. During the three and nine months ended June 29, 2018, $1.7 million and $4.5 million in amortization of intangibles were included in cost of
goods sold, respectively, and $3.9 million and $12.0 million in amortization of intangibles were included in selling, general and administrative expense,
respectively.
The increase in amortization expense for the three and nine months ended June 28, 2019, as compared with the corresponding periods in fiscal 2018, was
primarily due to amortization attributable to the Avnera acquisition completed in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2018.
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES
Three Months Ended
June 28,
2019

Nine Months Ended
June 29,
2018

Change

June 28,
2019

June 29,
2018

Change

(dollars in millions)

Provision for income taxes
% of net revenue

$

17.8
2.3%

(26.7)%

$

24.3
2.7%

$

84.0
3.3%

(76.4)%

$

355.8
12.4%

We recorded a provision for income taxes of $17.8 million (which consisted of $1.8 million and $16.0 million related to United States and foreign income
taxes, respectively) and $84.0 million (which consisted of $52.7 million and $31.3 million related to United States and foreign income taxes, respectively)
for the three and nine months ended June 28, 2019, respectively.
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The effective tax rates for the three and nine months ended June 28, 2019, were 11.0% and 11.6%, respectively, as compared with 7.8% and 36.0% for the
three and nine months ended June 29, 2018, respectively. The decrease in effective tax rates for the nine months ended June 28, 2019, as compared with the
corresponding period in fiscal 2018, was primarily due to the enactment of the 2017 Tax Reform Act including a one-time charge related to the mandatory
deemed repatriation tax on foreign earnings and a one-time charge related to the revaluation of our deferred tax assets and liabilities.
The difference between our effective tax rates for the three and nine months ended June 28, 2019, and the federal statutory rate of 21.0% resulted primarily
from foreign earnings taxed at rates lower than the federal statutory rate, a benefit from FDII, and research and experimentation and foreign tax credits earned,
partially offset by a tax on GILTI, and an increase in tax expense related to a change in the reserve for uncertain tax positions.
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Nine Months Ended
June 28,
2019

(in millions)

June 29,
2018

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Net cash provided by operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash used in financing activities

$

733.3
950.4
(235.1)
(705.8)

$

1,616.8
1,053.0
(809.2)
(702.5)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

$

742.8

$

1,158.1

Cash provided by operating activities:
Cash provided by operating activities consists of net income for the period adjusted for certain non-cash items and changes in certain operating assets and
liabilities. During the nine months ended June 28, 2019, we generated $950.4 million of cash from operating activities, a decrease of $102.6 million as
compared with the $1,053.0 million generated during the nine months ended June 29, 2018. The decrease in cash from operating activities during the nine
months ended June 28, 2019, as compared with the corresponding period in fiscal year 2018, was primarily related to an increase in working capital.
Cash used in investing activities:
Cash used in investing activities consists primarily of capital expenditures and cash paid related to the purchase of marketable securities, offset by cash
received related to the sale or maturity of marketable securities. Cash used in investing activities was $235.1 million during the nine months ended June 28,
2019, as compared with $809.2 million during the nine months ended June 29, 2018. Purchases of marketable securities were $243.7 million and sales and
maturities of marketable securities were $334.4 million during the nine months ended June 28, 2019. The cash used for capital expenditures was $314.0
million in the nine months ended June 28, 2019, primarily related to the purchase of manufacturing equipment to support the expansion of our assembly and
test operations, filter production operations, and wafer fabrication facilities.
Cash used in financing activities:
Cash used in financing activities consists primarily of cash transactions related to equity. During the nine months ended June 28, 2019, we had net cash
outflows from financing activities of $705.8 million, as compared with net cash outflows from financing activities of $702.5 million during the nine months
ended June 29, 2018. During the nine months ended June 28, 2019, we had the following significant uses of cash:
•
•

$511.3 million related to our repurchase of 6.9 million shares of our common stock pursuant to the stock repurchase programs approved by our Board of
Directors on January 30, 2019, and January 31, 2018.
$198.8 million related to the payment of cash dividends on our common stock.

Liquidity:
Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities totaled $970.1 million as of June 28, 2019, representing a decrease of $80.1 million from September 28,
2018. The decrease resulted from $511.3 million used to repurchase 6.9 million shares of stock, $198.8 million in cash dividend payments, and $314.0
million in capital expenditures, which was partially offset by $950.4 million in cash generated from operations. Based on our historical results of operations,
we expect that our cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities on hand and the cash we expect to generate from operations will be sufficient to fund our
research and development, capital expenditures, potential acquisitions, working capital, quarterly cash dividend payments (if such dividends are declared by
the Board of Directors), outstanding commitments and other liquidity requirements associated with existing operations for at least the next 12 months.
However, we cannot be certain that our cash on hand and cash generated from operations will be available in the future to fund all of our capital
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and operating requirements. In addition, any future strategic investments and acquisitions may require additional cash and capital resources. If we are unable
to obtain sufficient cash or capital to meet our needs on a timely basis and on favorable terms, our business and operations could be materially and adversely
affected.
Our invested cash balances primarily consist of highly liquid marketable securities that are available to meet near-term cash requirements including: term
deposits, certificate of deposits, money market funds, U.S. Treasury securities, agency securities, other government securities, corporate debt securities and
commercial paper.
CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
Our contractual obligations disclosure in the 2018 10-K has not materially changed since we filed that report.
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
We have no material off-balance sheet arrangements as defined in SEC Regulation S-K Item 303(a)(4)(ii).
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.
We are subject to overall financial market risks, such as changes in market liquidity, credit quality, investment risk, interest rate risk, and foreign exchange
rate risk as described below.
Investment and Interest Rate Risk
Our exposure to interest rate and general market risks relates principally to our investment portfolio, which consists of cash and cash equivalents (money
market funds and marketable securities purchased with less than ninety days until maturity) that total approximately $742.8 million and marketable
securities (U.S. Treasury and government securities, corporate bonds and notes, municipal bonds, other government securities) that total approximately
$192.2 million and $35.1 million within short-term and long-term marketable securities, respectively, as of June 28, 2019.
The main objectives of our investment activities are liquidity and preservation of capital. Our cash equivalent investments have short-term maturity periods
that dampen the impact of market or interest rate risk. Our marketable securities consist of short-term and long-term maturity periods between 90 days and two
years. Credit risk associated with our investments is not material because our investments are diversified across several types of securities with high credit
ratings, which reduces the amount of credit exposure to any one investment.
Based on our results of operations for the three and nine months ended June 28, 2019, a hypothetical reduction in the interest rates on our cash, cash
equivalents, and other investments to zero would result in an immaterial reduction of interest income with a de minimis impact on income before taxes.
Given the low interest rate environment, the objectives of our investment activities, and the relatively low interest income generated from our cash, cash
equivalents, and other investments, we do not believe that investment or interest rate risks pose material exposures to our current business or results of
operations.
Foreign Exchange Rate Risk
Substantially all sales to customers and arrangements with third-party manufacturers provide for pricing and payment in United States dollars, thereby
reducing the impact of foreign exchange rate fluctuations on our results. A percentage of our international operational expenses are denominated in foreign
currencies and exchange rate volatility could positively or negatively impact those operating costs. Increases in the value of the United States dollar relative
to other currencies could make our products more expensive, which could negatively impact our ability to compete. Conversely, decreases in the value of the
United States dollar relative to other currencies could result in our suppliers raising their prices to continue doing business with us. Given the relatively small
number of customers and arrangements with third-party manufacturers denominated in foreign currencies, we do not believe that foreign exchange volatility
has a material impact on our current business or results of operations. However, fluctuations in currency exchange rates could have a greater effect on our
business or results of operations in the future to the extent our expenses increasingly become denominated in foreign currencies.
We may enter into foreign currency forward and option contracts with financial institutions to protect against foreign exchange risks associated with certain
existing assets and liabilities, certain firmly committed transactions, forecasted future cash flows and net investments in foreign subsidiaries. However, we
may choose not to hedge certain foreign exchange exposures for a variety of reasons, including, but not limited to, accounting considerations and the
prohibitive economic cost of hedging particular exposures.
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For the three months ended June 28, 2019, we had no outstanding foreign currency forward or option contracts with financial institutions.
Item 4. Controls and Procedures.
Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures
Our management, with the participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures as of June 28, 2019. The term “disclosure controls and procedures,” as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act, means
controls and other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or
submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure
controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in
the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the company’s management, including its principal
executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Management recognizes that any controls
and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives and management necessarily
applies its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. Based on management’s evaluation of our disclosure
controls and procedures as of June 28, 2019, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded that, as of such date, our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level.
Changes in internal control over financial reporting
There are no changes to our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act) that occurred during
the period covered by this report that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings.
From time to time, various lawsuits, claims and proceedings have been, and may in the future be, instituted or asserted against the Company, including those
pertaining to patent infringement, intellectual property, environmental hazards, product liability and warranty, safety and health, employment and
contractual matters.
The semiconductor industry is characterized by vigorous protection and pursuit of intellectual property rights. From time to time, third parties have asserted
and may in the future assert patent, copyright, trademark and other intellectual property rights to technologies that are important to the Company’s business
and have demanded and may in the future demand that the Company license their technology. The outcome of any such litigation cannot be predicted with
certainty and some such lawsuits, claims or proceedings may be disposed of unfavorably to the Company. Generally speaking, intellectual property disputes
often have a risk of injunctive relief, which, if imposed against the Company, could materially and adversely affect the Company’s financial condition, or
results of operations. From time to time the Company may also be involved in legal proceedings in the ordinary course of business.
The Company monitors the status of legal proceedings and other contingencies on an ongoing basis to ensure loss contingencies are recognized and/or
disclosed in its financial statements and footnotes. The Company does not believe there are any pending legal proceedings that are reasonably possible to
result in a material loss. The Company is engaged in various legal actions in the normal course of business and, while there can be no assurances, the
Company believes the outcome of all pending litigation involving the Company will not have, individually or in the aggregate, a material adverse effect on
its business or financial statements.
Item 1A. Risk Factors.
In addition to the other information set forth in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, you should carefully consider the factors discussed in Part I, Item 1A
Risk Factors in the 2018 10-K, which could materially affect our business, financial condition or future results. Except as set forth below, there have been no
material changes from the risk factors previously disclosed in the 2018 10-K.
We are subject to the risks of doing business internationally.
A substantial majority of our net revenue is derived from shipments to customers located outside the United States, primarily in countries located in the AsiaPacific region and Europe. In addition, we have suppliers located outside the United States, and third-party packaging, assembly and test facilities and
foundries located in the Asia-Pacific region. Finally, we maintain wafer fabrication facilities in Kadoma, Japan, and Osaka, Japan, as well as packaging,
assembly and test facilities in Mexicali, Mexico, and in Singapore.
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Our international sales and operations are subject to a number of risks inherent in selling and operating abroad. These include, but are not limited to, risks
regarding:
•
currency exchange rate fluctuations, including increases or decreases in commodities prices related to such fluctuations,
•
local economic and political conditions, including, but not limited to, social, economic and political instability related to the uncertainty
regarding the relationships between the United States and China, Russia, Mexico, North Korea, Middle Eastern countries, other foreign countries,
and the international community at large, and related to the United Kingdom’s pending withdrawal from the European Union,
•
labor market conditions and workers’ rights,
•
disruptions of capital and trading markets,
•
inability to collect accounts receivable,
•
restrictive governmental actions (such as restrictions on transfer of funds and trade protection measures, including export duties, quotas, customs
duties, border taxes, increased import or export controls and tariffs) that could negatively impact trade between, or increase the cost of operating
in, the countries in which we do business,
•
changes in, or non-compliance with, legal or regulatory import/export requirements, including restrictions on selling to certain customers or into
certain jurisdictions,
•
natural disasters, acts of terrorism, widespread illness and war,
•
unauthorized transfers of our electronic information and breaches of our information systems, as well as the potential lack of adequate remedies in
certain jurisdictions,
•
difficulty in obtaining distribution and support,
•
cultural differences in the conduct of business,
•
direct or indirect government actions, subsidies or policies aimed at supporting local industry,
•
the laws and policies of the United States and other countries affecting trade, foreign investment and loans, foreign travel, and import or export
licensing requirements,
•
withdrawal from, or renegotiation of, existing trade agreements by the United States (or other jurisdictions) potentially affecting Mexico, China,
and other countries in which we do business,
•
changes in current or future tax law or regulations or new interpretations thereof, by federal or state agencies or foreign governments (including
changes in certain countries in Europe and elsewhere regarding corporate taxes, transfer pricing, and tax treaty provisions),
•
changes in the effective tax rate as a result of our overall profitability and mix of earnings in countries with differing statutory tax rates,
•
results of audits and examination of previously filed tax returns,
•
the possibility of being exposed to legal proceedings and potential penalties in a foreign jurisdiction, and/or increased compliance expense, as a
result of the numerous, and sometimes conflicting, legal regimes on matters as diverse as anti-corruption, anti-bribery, import/export controls,
content requirements, trade restrictions, tariffs, taxation, sanctions, immigration, internal and disclosure control obligations, securities regulation,
anti-competition, data privacy and protection (including, but not limited to, the European Union’s General Data Protection Regulation),
employment and labor relations,
•
limitations on our ability under local laws to protect or enforce our intellectual property rights in a particular foreign jurisdiction, and
•
restrictions on our ability to repatriate foreign earnings and/or funds and the unfavorable tax impactions related to the same.
Additionally, we are subject to risks in certain global markets in which wireless operators provide subsidies on handset sales to their customers. Increases in
cellular handset prices that negatively impact handset sales can result from changes in regulatory policies or other factors, which could impact the demand for
our products. Limitations or changes in policy on phone subsidies in the United States, South Korea, Japan, China, and other countries may have additional
negative impacts on our revenues.
Some of the countries in which we operate and seek to expand are in emerging markets where legal systems may be less developed or familiar to us. Other
jurisdictions in which we conduct business may establish legal and regulatory regimes that differ materially from United States laws and regulations.
Compliance with diverse legal requirements is costly and time-consuming and requires significant resources. Violations of one or more of these regulations in
the conduct of our business could result in significant fines or monetary damages, criminal sanctions against us or our officers, prohibitions on doing
business, unfavorable publicity and other reputation damage, restrictions on our ability to process information and allegations by our clients that we have not
performed our contractual obligations.
We are particularly exposed to risks of doing business in China. Although we intend to expand our business and operations in China, our success in the
Chinese markets may be adversely affected by China’s continuously evolving laws and regulations, including those relating to taxation, import and export
tariffs, currency controls, anti-corruption, environmental regulations, indigenous innovation, and intellectual property rights and enforcement of those rights.
Enforcement of existing laws or agreements may be inconsistent. In
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addition, changes in the political environment, governmental policies or United States-China relations could result in revisions to laws or regulations or their
interpretation and enforcement, exposure of our proprietary intellectual property, increased taxation, restrictions on imports, import duties or currency
revaluations, which could have an adverse effect on our business plans and operating results. In particular, the imposition by the United States of tariffs on
goods imported from China or deemed to be of Chinese origin and other government actions that restrict our ability to sell our products to Chinese customers
or to manufacture or source components in China, and countermeasures imposed by China in response, could directly or indirectly adversely impact our
manufacturing costs and the sales of our products in China and elsewhere. For example, in May 2019, the U.S. Bureau of Industry and Security of the U.S.
Department of Commerce placed Huawei Technologies Co., Ltd. and certain of its affiliates on the Bureau’s Entity List, which resulted in our temporarily
suspending shipments to Huawei, and which is expected to adversely affect future demand for our products from this customer. Further, the evolving labor
market and increasing labor unrest in China may have a negative impact on our customers, which would result in a negative impact on our business and
results of operations. Finally, China’s stated policy of reducing its dependence on foreign semiconductor manufacturers and other technology companies
could result in reduced demand for our products in China and other key markets as well as reduced supply of critical materials for our products.
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.
The following table provides information regarding repurchases of common stock made during the three months ended June 28, 2019:
Total Number of Shares
Purchased

Average Price Paid per
Share

Total Number of Shares Purchased as
Part of Publicly Announced Plans or
Programs (1)

Approximate Dollar Value of Shares that May Yet
Be Purchased Under the Plans or Programs (1)

3/30/19-4/26/19

47,186(2)

$80.99

45,646

$1.85 billion

4/27/19-5/24/19
5/25/19-6/28/19

7,619(3)
1,142,339

$77.92
$71.86

—
1,142,339

$1.85 billion
$1.77 billion

Total

1,197,144

Period

1,187,985

(1) The stock repurchase program approved by the Board of Directors on January 30, 2019, authorizes the repurchase of up to $2.0 billion of our common
stock from time to time on the open market or in privately negotiated transactions as permitted by securities laws and other legal requirements and expires on
January 30, 2021.
(2) 45,646 shares were repurchased at an average price of $80.78 per share as part of our stock repurchase program, and 1,540 shares were repurchased by us at
the fair market value of the common stock as of the applicable purchase date, in connection with the satisfaction of tax withholding obligations under equity
award agreements with an average price of $87.07 per share.
(3) Represents shares repurchased by us at the fair market value of the common stock as of the applicable purchase date, in connection with the satisfaction of
tax withholding obligations under equity award agreements.
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Item 6. Exhibits.
Exhibit
Number

Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit Description

Form

File No.

Exhibit

Filing Date

Filed
Herewith

10.1

Skyworks Solutions, Inc. 2015 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as
Amended

X

31.1

Certification of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer pursuant
to Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, Rules 13a-14(a)
and 15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

X

31.2

Certification of the Company’s Chief Financial Officer pursuant to
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, Rules 13a-14(a)
and 15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

X

32.1

Certification of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

X

32.2

Certification of the Company’s Chief Financial Officer pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

X

101.INS

Inline XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not
appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are
embedded within the Inline XBRL document.

101.SCH

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

X

101.CAL

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase
Document

X

101.DEF

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase
Document

X

101.LAB

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

X

101.PRE

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase
Document

X

104

Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as inline XBRL with
applicable taxonomy extension information contained in Exhibits
101)

25

Table of Contents

SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.

SKYWORKS SOLUTIONS, INC.
Date: August 7, 2019

By:

/s/ Liam K. Griffin
Liam K. Griffin
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

By:

/s/ Kris Sennesael
Kris Sennesael
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Accounting and Financial Officer)
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Exhibit 10.1

SKYWORKS SOLUTIONS, INC.
2015 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN, AS AMENDED
1.

Purpose

The purpose of this 2015 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) of Skyworks Solutions, Inc., is to advance the interests of the
Company’s stockholders by enhancing the Company’s ability to attract, retain and motivate persons who are expected to make
important contributions to the Company and by providing such persons with equity ownership opportunities and performance-based
incentives that are intended to align their interests with those of the Company’s stockholders. In the event that the Company’s
stockholders do not approve the Plan, the Skyworks Solutions, Inc. Amended and Restated 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan will
continue in full force and effect on its terms and conditions as in effect immediately prior to the date the Plan is approved by the Board.
2.

Certain Definitions

Wherever the following terms are used in the Plan they shall have the meanings specified below, unless the context clearly indicates
otherwise. The singular pronoun shall include the plural where the context so indicates.
(a)

“Administrator” shall mean the entity that conducts the general administration of the Plan as provided in Section 3. With
reference to the duties of the Committee under the Plan that have been delegated to one or more persons pursuant to
Section 3(d) or Section 3(e), or as to which the Board has assumed, the term “Administrator” shall refer to such
person(s) unless the Committee or the Board has revoked such delegation or the Board has terminated the assumption of
such duties.

(b)

“Award” shall mean an Option, a Restricted Stock award, a Restricted Stock Unit award, a Performance Award, a
Dividend Equivalent award, an Other Stock Unit Award, or a Stock Appreciation Right, which may be awarded or
granted under the Plan (collectively, “Awards”).

(c)

“Award Agreement ” shall mean any written notice, agreement, terms and conditions, contract or other instrument or
document evidencing an Award, including through electronic medium, which shall contain such terms and conditions
with respect to an Award that are consistent with the Plan.

(d)

“Award Limit” shall mean, with respect to Awards that shall be payable in shares of Common Stock or in cash, as the
case may be, the respective per-Participant limit set forth in Section 4(e).

(e)

“Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company.

(f)

“Cause” shall have the meaning given in an employment agreement, severance agreement, change in control
agreement, consulting agreement or other similar agreement, if any, between the Company and the Participant, or if
there is no such agreement (or if such agreement does not define “Cause”), then except as otherwise provided by the
Administrator in an Award Agreement with respect to an Award, “Cause” shall mean the determination by the
Administrator or by the Company’s appropriate

management personnel that any of the following acts or events exists or has occurred with respect to a Participant:

(g)

(i)

the Participant’s deliberate dishonesty that is significantly detrimental to the best interests of the Company;

(ii)

conduct by the Participant constituting an act of moral turpitude;

(iii)

the Participant’s willful disloyalty to the Company or refusal or failure to obey the directions of the Board, the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer or President, or the Participant’s direct supervisor; or

(iv)

the Participant’s incompetent performance or substantial or continuing inattention to or neglect of duties
assigned to the Participant.

“Change in Control” shall mean an event or occurrence set forth in any one or more of subsections (i) through (iv)
below (including an event or occurrence that constitutes a Change in Control under one of such subsections but is
specifically exempted from another such subsection):
(i)

the acquisition by an individual, entity or group (within the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) or 14(d)(2) of the
Exchange Act (a “Person”) of beneficial ownership of any capital stock of the Company if, after such
acquisition, such Person beneficially owns (within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 promulgated under the Exchange
Act) 40% or more of either (x) the then-outstanding shares of Common Stock (the “Outstanding Company
Common Stock”) or (y) the combined voting power of the then-outstanding securities of the Company entitled to
vote generally in the election of directors (the “Outstanding Company Voting Securities ”); provided, however,
that for purposes of this subsection (i), the following acquisitions shall not constitute a Change in Control: (A)
any acquisition directly from the Company (excluding an acquisition pursuant to the exercise, conversion or
exchange of any security exercisable for, convertible into or exchangeable for common stock or voting
securities of the Company, unless the Person exercising, converting or exchanging such security acquired such
security directly from the Company or an underwriter or agent of the Company), (B) any acquisition by the
Company, (C) any acquisition by any employee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsored or maintained by the
Company or any corporation controlled by the Company, or (D) any acquisition by any corporation pursuant to
a transaction that complies with clauses (A) and (B) of subsection (iii) of this Section 2(g); or

(ii)

such time as the Continuing Directors (as defined below) do not constitute a majority of the Board (or, if
applicable, the Board of Directors of a successor corporation to the Company), where the term “Continuing
Director” means at any date a member of the Board (A) who was a member of the Board on the Effective Date
or (B) who was nominated or elected subsequent to the Effective Date by at least a majority of the directors who
were Continuing Directors at the time of such nomination or election or whose election to the Board was
recommended or endorsed by at least a majority of the directors who were Continuing Directors at the time of
such nomination or election; provided, however, that there shall be excluded from this clause (B) any individual
whose initial assumption of office occurred as a result of an actual or threatened election contest with respect to
the election or removal of directors or other actual or threatened solicitation of proxies or consents, by or on
behalf of a person other than the Board; or

(iii)

the consummation of a merger, consolidation, reorganization, recapitalization or statutory share exchange
involving the Company or a sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company in
one or a series of transactions (a “Business Combination”),

unless, immediately following such Business Combination, each of the following two conditions is satisfied: (A)
all or substantially all of the individuals and entities who were the beneficial owners of the Outstanding
Company Common Stock and Outstanding Company Voting Securities immediately prior to such Business
Combination beneficially own, directly or indirectly, more than 50% of the then-outstanding shares of Common
Stock and the combined voting power of the then-outstanding securities entitled to vote generally in the election
of directors, respectively, of the resulting or acquiring corporation in such Business Combination (which shall
include, without limitation, a corporation that as a result of such transaction owns the Company or substantially
all of the Company’s assets either directly or through one or more subsidiaries) (such resulting or acquiring
corporation is referred to herein as the “Acquiring Corporation”) in substantially the same proportions as their
ownership, immediately prior to such Business Combination, of the Outstanding Company Common Stock and
Outstanding Company Voting Securities, respectively; and (B) no Person (excluding any employee benefit plan
(or related trust) maintained or sponsored by the Company or by the Acquiring Corporation) beneficially owns,
directly or indirectly, 40% or more of the then-outstanding shares of common stock of the Acquiring
Corporation, or of the combined voting power of the then-outstanding securities of such corporation entitled to
vote generally in the election of directors (except to the extent that such ownership existed prior to the Business
Combination); or
(iv)

approval by the stockholders of the Company of a complete liquidation or dissolution of the Company.

For the avoidance of doubt, all references to the “Company” in this Section 2(g) shall mean Skyworks Solutions, Inc.
Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, to the extent that any payment or benefit under the Plan constitutes
nonqualified deferred compensation within the meaning of Section 409A, then, with respect to such payment or
benefit, any event constituting a Change in Control above must also constitute a “change in control event” within the
meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-3(i)(5)(i).
(h)

“Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time.

(i)

“Committee” shall mean the Compensation Committee of the Board, or another committee or subcommittee of the
Board, appointed as provided in Section 3(a).

(j)

“Common Stock” shall mean the common stock of Skyworks Solutions, Inc., par value $0.25 per share.

(k)

“Company” shall mean Skyworks Solutions, Inc., a Delaware corporation. Except where the context otherwise requires,
the term “Company” shall include any present or future Subsidiary or parent corporation (as “parent corporation” is
defined in Section 424(e) of the Code and any regulations promulgated thereunder) of the Company and any other
business venture (including, without limitation, joint venture or limited liability company) in which the Company has a
controlling interest, as determined by the Board.

(l)

“Consultant” shall mean any consultant or adviser that qualifies as a consultant under the applicable rules of the
Securities and Exchange Commission for registration of shares on a Form S-8 Registration Statement.

(m)

“Covered Employee” shall mean any Employee who is, or whom the Committee, in its discretion, determines may be, a
“covered employee” within the meaning of Section 162(m)(3) of the Code.

(n)

“Designated Beneficiary” shall mean the beneficiary designated, in a manner determined by the Company, by a
Participant to receive amounts due or exercise rights of the Participant in the event of the Participant’s death. In the
absence of an effective designation by a Participant, “Designated Beneficiary” shall mean the Participant’s estate.

(o)

“Disability” shall mean that the Participant is “permanently and totally disabled” within the meaning of Section 22(e)(3)
of the Code. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, to the extent that a payment or benefit under the Plan
constitutes nonqualified deferred compensation within the meaning of Section 409A, then, with respect to such payment
or benefit, the Participant must also be “disabled” within the meaning of Section 409A(a)(2)(C) of the Code.

(p)

“Dividend Equivalent” shall mean a right to receive the equivalent value (in cash or Common Stock) of dividends paid
on Common Stock, granted under Section 8(b).

(q)

“Effective Date” shall mean the date the Plan is approved by the Company’s stockholders.

(r)

“Eligible Individual” shall mean any person who is an Employee or a Consultant, as determined by the Administrator.

(s)

“Employee” shall mean any officer or other employee (as defined in accordance with Section 3401(c) of the Code) of
the Company.

(t)

“Equity Acceleration Date” shall mean, with respect to an Award held by a Participant:
(i)

the effective date of a Change in Control, in the event that the Participant experiences a Qualifying Termination
that is within the period of time commencing three (3) months prior to the Change in Control and ending on the
effective date of the Change in Control; or

(ii)

the effective date of the Participant’s Termination of Service, in the event that the Participant experiences a
Qualifying Termination that is within the period of time commencing on the effective date of a Change in
Control and ending twelve (12) months following the Change in Control.

(u)

“Expiration Date” shall mean the ten (10) year anniversary of the Effective Date.

(v)

“Exchange Act” shall mean the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended from time to time.

(w)

“Fair Market Value” shall mean, as of any given date, the value of a share of Common Stock determined as follows:
(i)

If the Common Stock is listed on any established stock exchange, national market system or automated
quotation system (such as NASDAQ), its Fair Market Value shall be the closing sales price for a share of
Common Stock as quoted on such exchange or system for such date or, if there is no closing sales price for a
share of Common Stock on the date in question, the closing sales price for a share of Common Stock on the last
preceding date for which such quotation exists, as reported by NASDAQ or such other source as the
Administrator deems reliable, such as The Wall Street Journal;

(ii)

If the Common Stock is regularly quoted by a recognized securities dealer but closing sales prices are not
reported, its Fair Market Value shall be the mean of the high bid and low asked prices for such date or, if there
are no high bid and low asked prices for a share of Common Stock on such date, the high bid and low asked
prices for a share of Common Stock on the

last preceding date for which such information exists, as reported in The Wall Street Journal or such other
source as the Administrator deems reliable; or
(iii)

If the Common Stock is neither listed on an established stock exchange or a national market system nor regularly
quoted by a recognized securities dealer, its Fair Market Value shall be established by the Administrator in good
faith.

(x)

“Full Value Award ” shall mean any Award other than an Option, Stock Appreciation Right or other Award for which
the Participant pays the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock as of the date of grant (whether directly or by forgoing
a right to receive a payment from the Company or any Subsidiary).

(y)

“Good Reason” shall have the meaning given in an employment agreement, severance agreement, change in control
agreement or other similar agreement, if any, between the Company and the Participant, or if there is no such agreement
(or if such agreement does not define “Good Reason”), then except as otherwise provided by the Administrator in an
Award Agreement with respect to an Award, “Good Reason” shall mean either of the following actions, if taken without
the express written consent of the Participant:
(i)

A reduction of 5% or more in the Participant’s base salary in effect immediately prior to the Change in Control;
or

(ii)

A change in the Participant’s principal place of employment in effect immediately prior to the Change in Control
to a location that is more than fifty (50) miles from such principal place of employment.

A Participant’s Termination of Service shall not be deemed to be for Good Reason unless, within sixty (60) days of the
occurrence of the event constituting Good Reason, the Participant has provided the Company (or the acquiring entity)
with (A) at least thirty (30) days’ advance written notice of the Participant’s decision to terminate his or her employment
for Good Reason, and (B) a period of not less than thirty (30) days to cure the event or condition described in subsection
(i) or (ii), and the Company (or the acquiring entity) has failed to so cure the event or has waived its right to cure the
event, to the extent it is then subject to cure.
(z)

“Measurement Date” shall mean, with respect to a Performance Award, the last day of the applicable Performance
Period over which Performance Goals are measured pursuant to the terms of the Performance Award.

(aa)

“NASDAQ” shall mean the NASDAQ Global Select Market.

(bb) “Option” shall mean a right to purchase shares of Common Stock at a specified exercise price, granted under Section 5.

Any Option granted pursuant to the Plan is intended not to be an incentive stock option as described in Section 422 of
the Code and shall be designated a “Nonqualified Stock Option.”
(cc)

“Other Stock Unit Award ” shall mean an Award of shares of Common Stock, or other Award that is valued in whole or
in part by reference to, or is otherwise based on, shares of Common Stock or other property, granted under Section 8.

(dd) “Participant” shall mean a person who has been granted an Award under the Plan.
(ee) “Performance Award ” shall mean a Restricted Stock Award, an Other Stock Unit Award, a cash bonus award, a stock

bonus award, or any other Award under the Plan that is made subject to the achievement

of Performance Goals pursuant to Section 8 and is paid in cash, Common Stock or a combination of both.
(ff)
(gg)

“Performance-Based Compensation” shall mean any compensation that qualifies as “performance-based
compensation” as described in Section 162(m).
“Performance Criteria” shall mean the criteria (and adjustments) that the Committee selects for an Award for purposes
of establishing the Performance Goal or Performance Goals for a Performance Period, determined as follows:
(i)

The Performance Criteria that shall be used to establish Performance Goals shall include one or more of the
following: Revenues, net income (loss), operating income (loss), gross profit, earnings before or after
discontinued operations, interest, taxes, depreciation and/or amortization, operating profit before or after
discontinued operations and/or depreciation and/or amortization, earnings (loss) per share, net cash flow, cash
flow from operations, free cash flow, revenue growth, earnings growth, gross margins, operating margins, net
margins, inventory management (including, but not limited to, reductions in inventory, inventory turns, and
inventory levels), working capital (including a specific component thereof), return on sales, return on assets,
return on stockholders’ equity, return on investment or working capital, cash or cash equivalents position,
achievement of balance sheet or income statement objectives or total stockholder return, stock price,
improvement in financial ratings, completion of strategic acquisitions/dispositions, manufacturing efficiency,
product quality, customer satisfaction, market share and/or product design wins, a specific cost or expense item,
and implementation or completion of a specified key business project, any of which may be measured with
respect to an individual Participant, the Company, or any one or more of the Company’s Subsidiaries, divisions
or business units, and in absolute or relative terms (including, but not limited to, (A) as compared to any
incremental increase or decrease, (B) as compared to results of a peer group or other individuals or companies
comparably, similarly or otherwise situated, or (C) as compared to a business plan, budget or forecast).

(ii)

The Administrator may, in its sole discretion, provide that one or more objectively determinable adjustments be
made to one or more of the Performance Goals, including the exclusion of one or more of the following:
(A) extraordinary and/or nonrecurring items, (B) the cumulative effects of changes in accounting principles or
applicable laws, (C) gains or losses on the dispositions of discontinued operations, (D) the write-down of any
asset, (E) charges for restructuring and rationalization programs, (F) amortization of purchased intangibles
associated with acquisitions, (G) compensation expenses related to acquisitions, (H) other acquisition-related
charges (including, but not limited to, items attributable to the business operations of any entity acquired by the
Company during the Performance Period), (I) impairment charges, (J) gain or loss on minority equity
investments, (K) noncash income tax expenses, (L) equity-based compensation expenses, (M) items relating to
financing activities; (N) other nonoperating items; (O) items related to the disposal of a business or segment of a
business; or (P) items attributable to any stock dividend, stock split, combination or exchange of shares
occurring during the Performance Period. For all Awards intended to qualify as Performance-Based
Compensation, such determinations shall be made within the time prescribed by, and otherwise in compliance
with, Section 162(m).

(hh)

“Performance Goals” shall mean, for a Performance Period, one or more goals established in writing by the
Administrator for the Performance Period based upon one or more performance criteria or measures; provided, however,
that for any Award that is intended to qualify as Performance-Based Compensation, the Performance Goals shall be
based on one or more Performance Criteria.

(ii)

“Performance Period” shall mean one or more periods of time, which may be of varying and overlapping durations, as
the Administrator may select, over which the attainment of one or more

Performance Goals will be measured for the purpose of determining a Participant’s right to, and the payment of, a
Performance Award.
(jj)

“Plan” shall mean this Skyworks Solutions, Inc. 2015 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as it may be amended or restated from
time to time.

(kk)

“Prior Plan” shall mean the Skyworks Solutions, Inc. Amended and Restated 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan.

(ll)

“Qualifying Termination” shall mean a Participant’s Termination of Service by the Company without Cause or by the
Participant for Good Reason, in either case within the period of time commencing three (3) months prior to and ending
twelve (12) months following the Change in Control. For the avoidance of doubt, the term “Qualifying Termination”
shall apply only to an Employee’s Termination of Service. In the case of a Consultant, no Termination of Service shall
be a “Qualifying Termination” unless the Administrator, in its sole discretion, provides otherwise.

(mm)

“Reorganization Event” shall mean:
(i) any merger or consolidation of the Company with or into another entity as a result of which all of the Common Stock
of the Company is converted into or exchanged for the right to receive cash, securities or other property or is
cancelled;
(ii)

any exchange of all of the Common Stock of the Company for cash, securities or other property pursuant to a
share exchange transaction; or

(iii)

any liquidation or dissolution of the Company.

(nn)

“Restricted Stock” shall mean Common Stock granted under Section 7 that is subject to certain restrictions and may be
subject to risk of forfeiture or repurchase.

(oo)

“Restricted Stock Award” shall mean an Award for Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock Units.

(pp)

“Restricted Stock Units” shall mean the right to receive Common Stock granted under Section 7.

(qq)

“Section 162(m)” shall mean Section 162(m) of the Code or any successor provision thereto, and the regulations and
other interpretive guidance issued thereunder, including without limitation any such regulations or other guidance that
may be issued after the Effective Date.

(rr)

“Section 409A” shall mean Section 409A of the Code or any successor provision thereto, and the regulations and other
interpretive guidance issued thereunder, including without limitation any such regulations or other guidance that may be
issued after the Effective Date.

(ss)

“Stock Appreciation Right” or “SAR” shall mean a stock appreciation right granted under Section 6.

(tt)

“Subsidiary” shall mean any entity (other than the Company), whether domestic or foreign, in an unbroken chain of
entities beginning with the Company if each of the entities other than the last entity in the unbroken chain beneficially
owns, at the time of the determination, securities or interests representing more than fifty percent (50%) of the total
combined voting power of all classes of securities or interests in one of the other entities in such chain.

(uu)

“Substitute Award ” shall mean an Award granted under the Plan upon the assumption of, or in substitution for,
outstanding equity awards previously granted by a company or other entity in connection with a corporate transaction,
such as a merger, combination, consolidation or acquisition

of property or stock; provided, however, that in no event shall the term “Substitute Award” be construed to refer to an
award made in connection with the cancellation and repricing of an Option or Stock Appreciation Right.
(vv)

“Termination of Service” shall mean,
(i)

As to a Consultant, the time when the engagement of a Participant as a Consultant to the Company or a
Subsidiary is terminated for any reason, with or without Cause, including, without limitation, by resignation,
discharge, death or retirement, but excluding terminations where there is a simultaneous commencement of
employment with the Company or any Subsidiary or service as a nonemployee director of the Company.

(ii)

As to an Employee, the time when the employee-employer relationship between a Participant and the Company
or any Subsidiary is terminated for any reason, including, without limitation, a termination by resignation,
discharge, death, Disability or retirement; but excluding: (A) terminations where there is a simultaneous
reemployment or continuing employment of a Participant by the Company or any Subsidiary, (B) terminations
that are followed by the simultaneous establishment of a consulting relationship by the Company or a Subsidiary
with the former employee, and (C) at the sole discretion of the Administrator, terminations that result in a
temporary severance of the employee-employer relationship.

The Administrator, in its sole discretion, shall determine the effect of all matters and questions relating to a
Termination of Service, including, without limitation, the question of whether a Termination of Service resulted from a
discharge for Cause, and all questions of whether a particular leave of absence constitutes a Termination of Service. For
purposes of the Plan, a Participant’s employee-employer relationship or consultancy relations shall be deemed to be
terminated in the event that the Subsidiary employing or contracting with such Participant ceases to remain a Subsidiary
following any merger, sale of stock or other corporate transaction or event (including, without limitation, a spinoff).
3.

Administration and Delegation
(a)

Administrator. The Committee (or another committee or a subcommittee of the Board assuming the functions of the
Committee under the Plan) shall administer the Plan (except as otherwise permitted herein) and shall consist solely of
two or more nonemployee directors appointed by and holding office at the pleasure of the Board, each of whom is
intended to qualify as a “non-employee director” as defined by Rule 16b-3 under the Exchange Act or any successor
rule, an “outside director” as defined under Section 162(m) and an “independent director” under the rules of NASDAQ
(or other securities exchange or automated quotation system on which shares of Common Stock are listed, quoted or
traded); provided, that any action taken by the Committee shall be valid and effective, whether or not members of the
Committee at the time of such action are later determined not to have satisfied the requirements for membership set forth
in this Section 3(a) or otherwise provided in any charter of the Committee. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Committee may delegate its authority hereunder to the extent permitted by Sections 3(d) and 3(e). In its sole discretion,
the Board may at any time and from time to time exercise any and all rights and duties of the Committee under the Plan.

(b)

Duties and Powers of Administrator. The Administrator shall have authority to grant Awards and to adopt, amend and
repeal such administrative rules, guidelines and practices relating to the Plan as it shall deem advisable. The
Administrator may correct any defect, supply any omission or reconcile any inconsistency in the Plan or any Award in
the manner and to the extent it shall deem expedient to carry the Plan into effect and it shall be the sole and final judge
of such expediency. All decisions by the Administrator shall be made in the Administrator’s sole discretion and shall be
final and binding on all persons having or claiming any interest in the Plan or in any Award. No director or person
acting

(c)

4.

pursuant to the authority delegated by the Administrator shall be liable for any action or determination relating to or
under the Plan made in good faith.
Award Eligibility. The Administrator may, from time to time, select from among all Eligible Individuals those to whom
an Award shall be granted under the Plan and shall determine the nature and amount of the Award, consistent with the
requirements of the Plan.

(d)

Delegation to Committees or Subcommittees. To the extent permitted by applicable law, the Board or Committee may
delegate any or all of its powers under the Plan to one or more committees or subcommittees of the Board.

(e)

Delegation to Officers. To the extent permitted by applicable law, the Administrator may delegate to one or more
officers of the Company the power to grant or amend Awards consistent with the terms and conditions of the Plan that
constitute rights under Delaware law (subject to any limitations under the Plan) to employees or officers of the Company
and to exercise such other powers under the Plan as the Administrator may determine, provided that the Administrator
shall fix the terms of the Awards to be granted by such officers (including the exercise price of such Awards, which may
include a formula by which the exercise price will be determined) and the maximum number of shares subject to
Awards that the officers may grant; provided further, however, that no officer shall be authorized to grant Awards to, or
amend Awards held by, the following individuals: (i) any “executive officer” of the Company (as defined by Rule 3b-7
under the Exchange Act), (ii) any “officer” of the Company (as defined by Rule 16a-1 under the Exchange Act), (iii)
Covered Employees, or (iv) officers of the Company to whom authority to grant or amend Awards has been delegated
hereunder. The Administrator may not delegate authority under this Section 3(e) to grant Restricted Stock, unless
Delaware law then permits such delegation. Any delegation under this Section 3(e) shall be subject to any other
restrictions and limits that the Administrator specifies at the time of such delegation, and the Administrator may at any
time rescind the authority so delegated or appoint a new delegatee.

Stock Available for Awards
(a)

Number of Shares. Subject to adjustment under Section 11, Awards may be made under the Plan for a number of shares
of Common Stock that is equal to the sum of: (i) 9.75 million shares of Common Stock; and (ii) such additional number
of shares of Common Stock (up to 22.3 million shares) as is equal to the sum of (x) the number of shares of Common
Stock reserved for issuance under the Prior Plan that remain available for grant under the Prior Plan as of the Effective
Date, and (y) the number of shares of Common Stock subject to awards granted under the Prior Plan which awards
expire, terminate or are otherwise surrendered, canceled, forfeited or repurchased by the Company at their original
issuance price pursuant to a contractual repurchase right after the Effective Date.

(b)

Counting of Shares. Subject to adjustment under Section 11, an Option or Stock Appreciation Right shall be counted
against the share limit specified in Section 4(a) as one share for each share of Common Stock subject to such Award,
and a Full Value Award shall be counted against the share limit specified in Section 4(a) as one and one-half (1.5) shares
for each share of Common Stock issued upon settlement of such Full Value Award.

(c)

Lapses. If any Award expires or is terminated, surrendered or canceled without having been fully exercised or is
forfeited in whole or in part (including as the result of shares of Common Stock subject to such Award being
repurchased by the Company at the original issuance price pursuant to a contractual repurchase right) or results in any
Common Stock not being issued, the unused Common Stock covered by such Award shall again be available for the
grant of Awards under the Plan. To the extent that a Full Value Award (which, for purposes of this Section 4(c) shall
include any equivalent award granted under the Prior Plan) is forfeited or expires or such Full Value Award is settled for
cash (in whole or in part), the shares of Common Stock available under the Plan shall be increased by one and one-half
(1.5) shares of Common Stock subject to such Full Value Award that is forfeited, expired, or settled

in cash. Notwithstanding the foregoing, shares delivered (either by actual delivery, attestation or net exercise) to the
Company by a Participant (i) to purchase shares of Common Stock upon the exercise of an Award or (ii) to satisfy tax
withholding obligations with respect to any Awards (including shares retained from the Award creating the tax
obligation) shall not be added back to the number of shares available for the future grant of Awards. In the case of the
exercise of a SAR for shares, the number of shares counted against the shares available under the Plan shall be the full
number of shares subject to the SAR multiplied by the percentage of the SAR actually exercised, regardless of the
number of shares actually used to settle such SAR upon exercise. Shares of Common Stock issued under the Plan may
consist in whole or in part of authorized but unissued shares, treasury shares, or shares purchased on the open market;
provided, however, that shares of Common Stock repurchased by the Company on the open market using the proceeds
from the exercise of an Award shall not increase the number of shares available for future grant of Awards. The
payment of Dividend Equivalents in cash in conjunction with any outstanding Award shall not be counted against the
number of shares of Common Stock available for issuance under the Plan.

5.

(d)

Substitute Awards. To the extent permitted by applicable law, Substitute Awards shall not reduce the number of shares
of Common Stock authorized for grant under the Plan or count against the Award Limit with respect to any Participant.
Substitute Awards may be granted on such terms as the Administrator deems appropriate in the circumstances,
notwithstanding any limitations on Awards contained in the Plan.

(e)

Section 162(m) Per-Participant Limit. Without regard to the share-counting rules in Section 4(b) hereof, the maximum
number of shares of Common Stock with respect to which Awards may be granted to any Participant under the Plan
during any calendar year shall be 1,500,000 and the maximum aggregate amount of cash that may be paid during any
calendar year with respect to one or more Awards payable in cash shall be $5,000,000. For purposes of the foregoing
limits, the combination of an Option in tandem with an SAR shall be treated as a single Award. The Award Limit
described in this Section 4(e) shall be construed and applied consistently with Section 162(m). The fungible share
counting rules in Section 4(b) shall not apply for purposes of this Section 4(e) and instead, each share subject to any
type of Award shall be counted as one share for purposes of this Section 4(e).

Stock Options
(a)

General. The Administrator may grant Options and determine the number of shares of Common Stock to be covered by
each Option, the exercise price of each Option and the conditions and limitations applicable to the exercise of each
Option, including conditions relating to applicable federal or state securities laws, as it considers necessary or advisable.

(b)

Exercise Price. The Administrator shall establish the exercise price of each Option and specify such exercise price in the
applicable option agreement; provided, however, that the exercise price shall not be less than 100% of the Fair Market
Value at the time the Option is granted.

(c)

Option Vesting. The period during which the right to exercise, in whole or in part, an Option vests in the Participant shall
be set by the Administrator and the Administrator may determine that an Option may not be exercised in whole or in
part for a specified period after it is granted. Such vesting may be based on service with the Company or any Subsidiary,
any of the Performance Criteria, or any other criteria selected by the Administrator. At any time after grant of an Option,
the Administrator may, in its sole discretion and subject to whatever terms and conditions it selects, accelerate the period
during which an Option vests. No portion of an Option that is unexercisable at a Participant’s Termination of Service
shall thereafter become exercisable, except as may be otherwise provided in the Plan or by the Administrator either in
the Award Agreement or by action of the Administrator following the grant of the Option.

(d)

Termination of Service. Except as otherwise provided (i) in Sections 5(e), 12(d), 12(e), (ii) in an employment agreement,
severance agreement, change in control agreement or other similar agreement, if any, between the Company and the
Participant, (iii) by the Administrator in an Award Agreement, or (iv) by action of the Administrator following the grant
of an Option, all outstanding Options held by a Participant that are exercisable upon the Participant’s Termination of
Service, shall remain exercisable for a period of time expiring on the earlier of (a) the three (3) month anniversary of the
Participant’s Termination of Service, and (b) the final expiration date of such Options as set forth in the applicable
Award Agreement, subject to the other terms and conditions of such Award Agreement; provided that such Options
shall be exercisable only to the extent that the Participant was entitled to exercise such Options on the date of the
Termination of Service. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Participant violates the non-solicitation, non-competition
or confidentiality provisions of any employment contract, confidentiality and nondisclosure agreement or other
agreement between such Participant and the Company, the right to exercise Options under this Section 5(d) shall
terminate immediately upon written notice to the Participant from the Company describing such violation.

(e)

Termination of Service for Cause. Except as otherwise provided (i) in an employment agreement, severance agreement,
change in control agreement or other similar agreement, if any, between the Company and the Participant, (ii) by the
Administrator in an Award Agreement, or (iii) by action of the Administrator following the grant of an Option, all
outstanding Options that were exercisable by the Participant immediately prior to the Participant’s Termination of
Service for Cause, shall terminate immediately upon the effective date of such Termination of Service and shall not be
exercisable. The Participant shall be considered to have been discharged for Cause if the Company determines, within
30 days after the Participant’s resignation, that discharge for Cause was warranted.

(f)

Limitation on Repricing. Unless such action is approved by the Company’s stockholders, the Company may not (except
as provided for under Section 11): (i) amend any outstanding Option granted under the Plan to provide an exercise price
per share that is lower than the then-current exercise price per share of such outstanding Option, (ii) cancel any
outstanding option (whether or not granted under the Plan) and grant in substitution therefor new Awards under the Plan
covering the same or a different number of shares of Common Stock and having an exercise price per share lower than
the then-current exercise price per share of the cancelled option, (iii) cancel in exchange for a cash payment any
outstanding Option with an exercise price per share above the then-current Fair Market Value, or (iv) take any other
action under the Plan that constitutes a “repricing” within the meaning of the rules of NASDAQ (or other securities
exchange or automated quotation system on which shares of Common Stock are listed, quoted or traded).

(g)

No Reload Rights. No Option granted under the Plan shall contain any provision entitling the optionee to the automatic
grant of additional Options in connection with any exercise of the original Option.

(h)

Duration of Options. Each Option shall be exercisable at such times and subject to such terms and conditions as the
Administrator may specify in the applicable option agreement; provided, however, that no Option will be granted for a
term in excess of seven (7) years. The Administrator shall determine the time period, including the time period following
a Termination of Service, during which the Participant has the right to exercise the vested Options, which time period
may not extend beyond the term of the Option.

(i)

Exercise of Option. Options may be exercised by delivery to the Company of a written notice of exercise signed by the
proper person or by any other form of notice (including electronic notice) approved by the Administrator together with
payment in full as specified in Section 13(g) for the number of shares for which the Option is exercised. Shares of
Common Stock subject to the Option will be delivered by the Company following exercise as soon as practicable.

6.

(j)

Partial Exercise. An exercisable Option may be exercised in whole or in part. However, an Option shall not be
exercisable with respect to fractional shares and the Administrator may require that, by the terms of the Option, a partial
exercise be with respect to a minimum number of shares.

(k)

Substitute Awards. In connection with a merger or consolidation of an entity with the Company or the acquisition by the
Company of property or stock of an entity, the Administrator may grant Options in substitution for any options or other
stock or stock-based awards granted by such entity or an affiliate thereof. An Option that is a Substitute Award may be
granted on such terms as the Administrator deems appropriate in the circumstances, notwithstanding any limitations on
Options contained in this Section 5 or in Section 3(c). Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 5 to the
contrary, in the case of an Option that is a Substitute Award, the price per share of the shares of Common Stock subject
to such Option may be less than the Fair Market Value per share on the date of grant, provided, that such price per share
shall be determined in accordance with Section 409A (and, if applicable, with Section 424 of the Code and the
regulations thereunder).

Stock Appreciation Rights
(a)

General. A Stock Appreciation Right, or SAR, is an Award entitling the holder, upon exercise, to receive Common
Stock determined in whole or in part by reference to appreciation, from and after the date of grant, in the Fair Market
Value of a share of Common Stock. SARs may be based solely on appreciation in the Fair Market Value of Common
Stock or on a comparison of such appreciation with some other measure of market growth such as (but not limited to)
appreciation in a recognized market index. The date as of which such appreciation or other measure is determined shall
be the exercise date unless another date is specified by the Administrator in the SAR Award. SARs may not be granted
with a term in excess of seven (7) years from the date of grant.

(b)

Grants. Stock Appreciation Rights may be granted in tandem with, or independently of, Options granted under the Plan.
(i)

Tandem Awards. When Stock Appreciation Rights are expressly granted in tandem with Options, (A) the Stock
Appreciation Right will be exercisable only at such time or times, and to the extent, that the related Option is
exercisable (except to the extent designated by the Administrator in connection with a Reorganization Event and
will be exercisable in accordance with the procedure required for exercise of the related Option); (B) the Stock
Appreciation Right will terminate and no longer be exercisable upon the termination or exercise of the related
Option, except to the extent designated by the Administrator in connection with a Reorganization Event and
except that a Stock Appreciation Right granted with respect to less than the full number of shares covered by an
Option will not be reduced until the number of shares as to which the related Option has been exercised or has
terminated exceeds the number of shares not covered by the Stock Appreciation Right; (C) the Option will
terminate and no longer be exercisable upon the exercise of the related Stock Appreciation Right; and (D) the
Stock Appreciation Right will be transferable only with the related Option.

(ii)

Independent SARs. A Stock Appreciation Right not expressly granted in tandem with an Option will become
exercisable at such time or times, and on such conditions, as the Administrator may specify in the SAR Award.

(c)

Exercise. Stock Appreciation Rights may be exercised by delivery to the Company of a written notice of exercise signed
by the proper person or by any other form of notice (including electronic notice) approved by the Administrator,
together with any other documents required by the Administrator.

(d)

Limitation on Repricing. Unless such action is approved by the Company’s stockholders, the Company may not (except
as provided for under Section 11): (i) amend any outstanding SAR granted under the

Plan to provide an exercise price per share that is lower than the then-current exercise price per share of such
outstanding SAR, (ii) cancel any outstanding stock appreciation right (whether or not granted under the Plan) and grant
in substitution therefor new Awards under the Plan covering the same or a different number of shares of Common Stock
and having an exercise price per share lower than the then-current exercise price per share of the cancelled stock
appreciation right, (iii) cancel in exchange for a cash payment any outstanding SAR with an exercise price per share
above the then-current Fair Market Value, or (iv) take any other action under the Plan that constitutes a “repricing”
within the meaning of the rules of NASDAQ (or other securities exchange or automated quotation system on which
shares of Common Stock are listed, quoted or traded).
7.

8.

Restricted Stock; Restricted Stock Units
(a)

General. The Administrator may grant Awards of Restricted Stock to Eligible Individuals entitling recipients to acquire
shares of Common Stock, subject to the right of the Company to repurchase all or part of such shares at their issue price
or other stated or formula price (or to require forfeiture of such shares if issued at no cost) from the recipient in the event
that conditions specified by the Administrator in the applicable Award are not satisfied prior to the end of the applicable
restriction period or periods established by the Administrator for such Award. Instead of granting Awards of Restricted
Stock, the Administrator may grant Awards of Restricted Stock Units to Eligible Individuals entitling recipients to
receive shares of Common Stock to be delivered at the time such shares of Common Stock vest subject to such terms
and conditions on the delivery of the shares of Common Stock as the Administrator shall determine. The Administrator
shall determine the terms and conditions of a Restricted Stock Award, including the conditions for repurchase, forfeiture,
or vesting, and the issue price, if any.

(b)

Stock Certificates; Dividends. Subject to Section 13(l), any stock certificates issued in respect of a Restricted Stock
Award shall be registered in the name of the Participant and, unless otherwise determined by the Administrator,
deposited by the Participant, together with a stock power endorsed in blank, with the Company (or its designee). At the
expiration of the applicable restriction periods, the Company (or such designee) shall deliver the certificates no longer
subject to such restrictions to the Participant or if the Participant has died, to the Designated Beneficiary. Unless
otherwise provided in the applicable Award Agreement, any dividends (whether paid in cash, stock or property)
declared and paid by the Company with respect to unvested shares of Restricted Stock shall be subject to accrual as
provided in Section 13(h).

Performance Awards, Dividend Equivalents, and Other Stock Unit Awards
(a)

Performance Awards. The Administrator may grant Performance Awards under the Plan to any Eligible Individual and
may determine whether such Performance Awards are intended to qualify as Performance-Based Compensation. The
value of Performance Awards shall be subject to the achievement of Performance Goals over a specified Performance
Period. The Performance Goals applicable to a Performance Award may (i) vary by Participant, (ii) be different for
different Awards, or (iii) be particular to a Participant or the Subsidiary, division, business unit, department, branch, or
other unit in which the Participant works.

(b)

Dividend Equivalents. The Administrator may grant Dividend Equivalents under the Plan to any Eligible Individual
based on dividends declared on the Common Stock, to be credited as of dividend payment dates during the period
between the date an Award is granted to a Participant and the date such Award vests, is distributed or expires, as
determined by the Administrator. Such Dividend Equivalents shall be converted to cash or additional shares of Common
Stock by such formula and at such time and subject to such limitations as may be determined by the Administrator.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Dividend Equivalents shall be payable with respect to Options or Stock Appreciation

Rights. Unless otherwise provided in the applicable Award Agreement, any Dividend Equivalents shall be subject to
accrual as provided in Section 13(h).
(c)

9.

Other Stock Unit Awards. The Administrator may grant Other Stock Unit Awards under the Plan to any Eligible
Individual. Such Other Stock Unit Awards shall be available as a form of payment in the settlement of other Awards
granted under the Plan or as payment in lieu of compensation to which a Participant is otherwise entitled. Other Stock
Unit Awards may be paid in shares of Common Stock or cash, as the Administrator shall determine. Subject to the
provisions of the Plan, the Administrator shall determine the conditions of each Other Stock Unit Award, including any
purchase price applicable thereto and any conditions applicable thereto, including without limitation, performance-based
conditions.

Awards Intended to Qualify as Performance-Based Compensation
(a)

General. The Committee, in its sole discretion, may determine whether an Award is intended to qualify as PerformanceBased Compensation. If the Committee, in its discretion, decides to grant such an Award to a Covered Employee that is
intended to qualify as Performance-Based Compensation, then the provisions of this Section 9 shall control over any
contrary provision contained in the Plan. The Administrator may in its sole discretion grant Awards to Covered
Employees and other Eligible Individuals that are based on Performance Criteria or Performance Goals but that do not
satisfy the requirements of this Section 9 and are not intended to qualify as Performance-Based Compensation.

(b)

Committee. Grants of Performance Awards or other Awards to any Covered Employee intended to qualify as
Performance-Based Compensation shall be made only by the Committee. In the case of such Awards granted to Covered
Employees, references to the Administrator shall be treated as referring to the Committee.

(c)

Types of Awards. Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary, the Committee may grant any Award to a
Covered Employee intended to qualify as Performance-Based Compensation, including, without limitation, Restricted
Stock the restrictions with respect to which lapse upon the attainment of specified Performance Goals and any
Performance Awards that vest or become exercisable or payable upon the attainment of one or more specified
Performance Goals.

(d)

Procedures with Respect to Performance-Based Awards. To the extent necessary to comply with the requirements of
Section 162(m), with respect to any Award granted to one or more Covered Employees that is intended to qualify as
Performance-Based Compensation, no later than 90 days following the commencement of any Performance Period or
any designated fiscal period or period of service (or such earlier time as may be required under Section 162(m)), the
Committee shall, in writing, (i) designate one or more Participants, (ii) select the Performance Criteria applicable to the
Performance Period, (iii) establish the Performance Goals, and amounts of such Awards, as applicable, that may be
earned for such Performance Period based on the Performance Criteria, and (iv) specify the relationship between
Performance Criteria and the Performance Goals and the amounts of such Awards, as applicable, to be earned by each
Covered Employee for such Performance Period. Following the completion of each Performance Period, the Committee
shall certify in writing whether and the extent to which the applicable Performance Goals have been achieved for such
Performance Period.

(e)

Adjustments. Notwithstanding any provision of the Plan, with respect to any Award that is intended to qualify as
Performance-Based Compensation,
(i)

the Committee may adjust downwards, but not upwards, the cash or number of Shares payable pursuant to such
Award, and the Committee may not waive the achievement of the applicable Performance Goals except in the
case of the death or Disability of the Participant or a Change in Control of the Company; and

(ii)

10.

no adjustment or action described in Sections 10, 11, or 12, or in any other provision of the Plan, shall be
authorized to the extent that such adjustment or action would cause such Award to fail to qualify as
Performance-Based Compensation, unless the Administrator determines that the Award should not so qualify.

(f)

Payment of Performance-Based Awards. Except as provided in Sections 10 and 12 or as otherwise provided in the Plan
or an applicable Award Agreement and only to the extent permitted by Section 162(m), as to an Award that is intended
to qualify as Performance-Based Compensation, the Participant shall be eligible to receive payment pursuant to such
Awards for a Performance Period only if and to the extent the Performance Goals for such period are achieved.

(g)

Other. The Committee shall have the power to impose such other restrictions on Performance Awards as it may deem
necessary or appropriate to ensure that such Awards satisfy all requirements for Performance-Based Compensation.

Effect of a Change in Control
(a)

(b)

Qualifying Termination Prior to Change in Control. Notwithstanding anything in this Plan to the contrary, in the event
that a Participant experiences a Qualifying Termination that is within the period of time commencing three (3) months
prior to the Change in Control and ending on the effective date of the Change in Control, then on the date of the
Termination of Service, each outstanding and unvested Award held by such Participant as of the day prior to the date of
the Participant’s Termination of Service shall
(i)

remain outstanding for the period of three (3) months following the Participant’s Termination of Service with any
vesting of such Award being suspended until it is determined whether there is a Change in Control during the
three (3) month period following the Participant’s Termination of Service;

(ii)

if a Change in Control occurs within the three (3) month period following the Participant’s Termination of
Service, be treated as if the Participant had remained employed by the Company through the effective date of the
Change in Control and notwithstanding any vesting schedule, forfeiture provisions, or anything else to the
contrary in the respective Award Agreement governing such Award, subject to the same terms and conditions as
in effect immediately prior to the Participant’s Termination of Service and subject to any applicable provisions of
this Section 10; and

(iii)

if no Change in Control occurs within the three (3) month period following the Participant’s Termination of
Service, terminate and be of no further force or effect except as otherwise provided by the Administrator or in a
written agreement between the Company and the Participant.

Treatment of Awards upon a Change in Control. In the event of a Change in Control (without regard to whether such
event also constitutes a Reorganization Event), the following provisions shall apply to all then-outstanding Awards
(including any Awards that remain outstanding as of the Change in Control pursuant to Section 10(a)):
(i)

Performance Awards. If the Change in Control occurs prior to the Measurement Date for a Performance Award
that vests based upon the achievement of Performance Goals and upon a Participant providing continued service
to the Company, then upon the effective date of the Change in Control such Award shall be earned as to the
greater of (A) the “Target” level of shares for such Award, or (B) the number of shares that would have been
earned pursuant to

the terms of such Award based upon performance up through and including the day prior to the date of the
Change in Control; provided, however, that if the Administrator determines in its sole discretion that it is
impracticable to calculate the number of shares that would have been earned under clause (B) above with respect
to one or more of the applicable Performance Goals of the Award, then such Award shall be earned as to the
“Target” level of shares covered by such Performance Goal(s). For the avoidance of doubt, any deemed
satisfaction of Performance Goals as described in this Section 10(b)(i) shall occur prior to the assumption,
substitution, or accelerated vesting of such Award as provided in this Section 10(b) or in Section 10(c).

(c)

(ii)

Awards Not Assumed. In the event that the successor or surviving company in the Change in Control does not
agree to assume, or substitute for, an outstanding Award (or in the event that the Company is the ultimate parent
corporation in the Change in Control and does not agree to continue the Award) on substantially similar terms
with substantially equivalent economic benefits (which benefits shall include, for the avoidance of doubt, the
liquidity of the securities underlying the assumed or substituted award following the Change in Control) as exist
for such Award immediately prior to the Change in Control, as determined in the sole discretion of the
Administrator, then such Award shall, immediately prior to the Change in Control, automatically become vested,
exercisable, and issuable, and any forfeiture restrictions thereon shall immediately lapse, as applicable, in each
case, with respect to one-hundred percent (100%) of that number of then-unvested shares underlying such
Award, after giving effect to any deemed satisfaction of Performance Goals as described in Section 10(b)(i). If
an Award becomes exercisable pursuant to this Section 10(b)(ii), the Administrator shall notify the Participant
that the Award shall be fully exercisable beginning prior to the Change in Control contingent on the occurrence
of the Change in Control, and the Award shall terminate on the Change in Control.

(iii)

Awards Assumed. In the event that the successor or surviving company in the Change in Control agrees to
assume, or substitute for, an outstanding Award (or in the event that the Company is the ultimate parent
corporation in the Change in Control and agrees to continue the Award) on substantially similar terms with
substantially equivalent economic benefits (which benefits shall include, for the avoidance of doubt, the liquidity
of the securities underlying the assumed or substituted award following the Change in Control) as exist for such
Award immediately prior to the Change in Control (but after giving effect to any deemed satisfaction of
Performance Goals as described in Section 10(b)(i)), as determined in the sole discretion of the Administrator,
then for the avoidance of doubt, such Award shall, following the Change in Control, continue to be subject to
the same time-based vesting schedule to which the Award was subject immediately prior to the Change in
Control.

Treatment of Awards upon a Qualifying Termination. Subject to the provisions of Section 14(g), in the event that a
Participant experiences a Qualifying Termination, each outstanding and unvested Award under the Plan held by the
Participant on the Equity Acceleration Date that, pursuant to its terms and after giving effect to any deemed satisfaction
of Performance Goals as described in Section 10(b)(i) and any deemed continued employment through the effective date
of the Change in Control as described in Section 10(a), vests solely based upon providing continued service to the
Company (or, if applicable, a successor corporation to the Company), including, without limitation, Options, SARs,
Restricted Stock Awards, and Performance Awards that are earned but unissued, shall on the Equity Acceleration Date
automatically become vested, exercisable, and issuable, and any forfeiture restrictions thereon shall immediately lapse,
as applicable, in each case, with respect to one-hundred percent (100%) of that number of then-unvested shares
underlying such Award. For the avoidance of doubt, the reference in this Section 10(c) to “Performance Awards that are
earned but unissued” shall include any Awards (i) for which the Measurement Date occurs on or prior to the effective
date of the Change in Control, and (ii) for which the Change in Control occurs prior to the

Measurement Date and which are upon the Change in Control converted into, or substituted by, Awards vesting solely
based upon providing continued service to the Company or its successor, pursuant to Section 10(b) above.
(d)

11.

Share Issuance. Subject to Section 13(f), any shares of Common Stock that are issued pursuant to Section 10(b)(ii) or
Section 10(c) shall be issued to the applicable Participant on, or as soon as practicable (but not more than sixty (60)
days) after, the Equity Acceleration Date (or such later date as may be required by Section 14(g)).

Effect of Changes in Common Stock and Reorganization Events
(a)

Changes in Capitalization. In the event of any stock split, reverse stock split, stock dividend, recapitalization,
combination of shares, reclassification of shares, spinoff or other similar change in capitalization or event, or any
distribution to holders of Common Stock other than an ordinary cash dividend, (i) the number and class of securities
available under this Plan, (ii) the Award Limit set forth in Section 4(e), (iii) the number and class of securities and
exercise price per share of each outstanding Option, (iv) the share- and per-share provisions of each Stock Appreciation
Right, (v) the repurchase price per share subject to each outstanding Restricted Stock Award and (vi) the share- and pershare provisions of each outstanding Other Stock Unit Award, shall be appropriately adjusted by the Company (or
substituted Awards may be made, if applicable) to the extent determined by the Board.

(b)

Consequences of a Reorganization Event on Awards Other than Restricted Stock. In connection with a Reorganization
Event, the Board shall take any one or more of the following actions as to all or any outstanding Awards other than
Restricted Stock on such terms as the Board determines: (i) provide that Awards shall be assumed, or substantially
equivalent Awards shall be substituted, by the acquiring or succeeding corporation (or an affiliate thereof), (ii) upon
written notice to a Participant, provide that the Participant’s unexercised Options or other unexercised Awards shall
become exercisable in full and will terminate immediately prior to the consummation of such Reorganization Event
unless exercised by the Participant within a specified period following the date of such notice, (iii) provide that
outstanding Awards shall become realizable or deliverable, or restrictions applicable to an Award shall lapse, in whole
or in part prior to or upon such Reorganization Event, (iv) in the event of a Reorganization Event under the terms of
which holders of Common Stock will receive upon consummation thereof a cash payment for each share surrendered in
the Reorganization Event (the “Acquisition Price”), make or provide for a cash payment to a Participant equal to (A) the
Acquisition Price times the number of shares of Common Stock subject to the Participant’s Options or other Awards (to
the extent the exercise price does not exceed the Acquisition Price) minus (B) the aggregate exercise price of all such
outstanding Options or other Awards, in exchange for the termination of such Options or other Awards, (v) provide that,
in connection with a liquidation or dissolution of the Company, Awards shall convert into the right to receive liquidation
proceeds (if applicable, net of the exercise price thereof) and (vi) any combination of the foregoing.
For purposes of subsection (i) above, an Option shall be considered assumed if, following consummation of the
Reorganization Event, the Option confers the right to purchase, for each share of Common Stock subject to the Option
immediately prior to the consummation of the Reorganization Event, the consideration (whether cash, securities or other
property) received as a result of the Reorganization Event by holders of Common Stock for each share of Common
Stock held immediately prior to the consummation of the Reorganization Event (and if holders were offered a choice of
consideration, the type of consideration chosen by the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Common
Stock); provided, however, that if the consideration received as a result of the Reorganization Event is not solely
common stock of the acquiring or succeeding corporation (or an affiliate thereof), the Company may, with the consent
of the acquiring or succeeding corporation, provide for the consideration to be received upon the exercise of Options to
consist solely of common stock of the acquiring or succeeding corporation (or an affiliate thereof) equivalent in fair
market value

to the per share consideration received by holders of outstanding shares of Common Stock as a result of the
Reorganization Event.
To the extent all or any portion of an Option becomes exercisable solely as a result of subsection (ii) above, the Board
may provide that upon exercise of such Option the Participant shall receive shares subject to a right of repurchase by the
Company or its successor at the Option exercise price; such repurchase right (x) shall lapse at the same rate as the
Option would have become exercisable under its terms and (y) shall not apply to any shares subject to the Option that
were exercisable under its terms without regard to subsection (ii) above.
(c)

12.

Consequences of a Reorganization Event on Awards of Restricted Stock. Upon the occurrence of a Reorganization Event
other than a liquidation or dissolution of the Company, the repurchase and other rights of the Company under each
outstanding Award of Restricted Stock shall inure to the benefit of the Company’s successor and shall apply to the cash,
securities or other property that the Common Stock was converted into or exchanged for pursuant to such
Reorganization Event in the same manner and to the same extent as they applied to the Common Stock subject to such
Award of Restricted Stock. Upon the occurrence of a Reorganization Event involving the liquidation or dissolution of
the Company, except to the extent specifically provided to the contrary in the instrument evidencing any Award of
Restricted Stock or any other agreement between a Participant and the Company, all restrictions and conditions on all
Awards of Restricted Stock then outstanding shall automatically be deemed terminated or satisfied.

Termination of Service Due to Death or Disability
(a)

Acceleration of Awards. In the event that a Participant experiences a Termination of Service due to death or Disability,
on the date of such Termination of Service each outstanding and unvested Award under the Plan held by the Participant
that, pursuant to its terms, vests solely based upon providing continued service to the Company, including, without
limitation, Options, SARs, Restricted Stock Awards, and Performance Awards that are earned but unissued, shall
automatically become vested, exercisable, and issuable, and any forfeiture restrictions thereon shall immediately lapse,
as applicable, in each case, with respect to one-hundred percent (100%) of that number of then-unvested shares
underlying such Award.

(b)

Performance Awards. In the event that a Participant holds a Performance Award that vests based upon the achievement
of Performance Goals and upon providing continued service to the Company and the Participant’s Termination of
Service due to death or Disability occurs prior to the Measurement Date for such Award, then such Award shall, as of
the Measurement Date, (i) be earned as to the greater of (A) the “Target” level of shares for such Award, or (B) the
number of shares that would have been earned pursuant to the terms of such Award had the Participant remained
employed through the Measurement Date, and (ii) automatically become vested, exercisable, and issuable, and any
forfeiture restrictions thereon shall immediately lapse, as applicable, in each case, as of the Measurement Date, with
respect to one-hundred percent (100%) of that number of then-unvested shares underlying such equity Award that are
earned pursuant to subsection (i) above.

(c)

Share Issuance. Subject to Section 13(f), any shares of Common Stock that are issued pursuant to Section 12(a) shall be
issued to the Participant (or to the Participant’s estate, if applicable) on, or as soon as practicable (but not more than sixty
(60) days) after, the date of the Participant’s Termination of Service (or such later date as may be required by
Section 14(g)). Subject to Section 13(f), any shares of Common Stock that are issued pursuant to Section 12(b) shall be
issued to the Participant (or to the Participant’s estate, if applicable) on, or as soon as practicable (but not more than sixty
(60) days) after, the Measurement Date.

13.

(d)

Exercise Period of Options Upon Death. Except as otherwise provided (i) in an employment agreement, severance
agreement, change in control agreement or other similar agreement, if any, between the Company and the Participant,
(ii) by the Administrator in an Award Agreement, or (iii) by action of the Administrator following the grant of an Option,
all outstanding Options held by a Participant that are exercisable upon the Participant’s Termination of Service due to
death (including any Options that become vested and exercisable pursuant to Section 12(a)) shall remain exercisable for
a period of time expiring on the earlier of (a) the one (1) year anniversary of the Participant’s Termination of Service due
to death, and (b) the final expiration date of such Options as set forth in the applicable Award Agreement, subject to the
other terms and conditions of such Award Agreement.

(e)

Exercise Period of Options Upon Disability. Except as otherwise provided (i) in an employment agreement, severance
agreement, change in control agreement or other similar agreement, if any, between the Company and the Participant,
(ii) by the Administrator in an Award Agreement, or (iii) by action of the Administrator following the grant of an Option,
all outstanding Options held by a Participant that are exercisable upon the Participant’s Termination of Service due to
Disability (including any Options that become vested and exercisable pursuant to Section 12(a)) shall remain exercisable
for a period of time expiring on the earlier of (a) the six (6) month anniversary of the Participant’s Termination of
Service due to Disability, and (b) the final expiration date of such Options as set forth in the applicable Award
Agreement, subject to the other terms and conditions of such Award Agreement.

General Provisions Applicable to Awards
(a)

Transferability of Awards. Except as the Administrator may otherwise determine or provide in an Award, Awards shall
not be sold, assigned, transferred, pledged or otherwise encumbered by the person to whom they are granted, either
voluntarily or by operation of law, except by will or the laws of descent and distribution and, during the life of the
Participant, shall be exercisable only by the Participant. References to a Participant, to the extent relevant in the context,
shall include references to authorized transferees.

(b)

Award Agreement. Each Award shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement (which may be electronic). Award
Agreements evidencing Awards intended to qualify as Performance-Based Compensation shall contain such terms and
conditions as may be necessary to meet the applicable provisions of Section 162(m).

(c)

Limitations Applicable to Section 16 Persons. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, the Plan and any Award
granted or awarded to any individual who is then subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act shall be subject to any
additional limitations set forth in any applicable exemptive rule under Section 16 of the Exchange Act (including Rule
16b-3 under the Exchange Act or any successor rule) that are requirements for the application of such exemptive rule.
To the extent permitted by applicable law, the Plan and Awards granted or awarded hereunder shall be deemed amended
to the extent necessary to conform to such applicable exemptive rule.

(d)

Administrator Discretion. Except as otherwise provided by the Plan, each Award may be made alone or in addition or in
relation to any other Award. The terms of each Award need not be identical, and the Administrator need not treat
Participants uniformly.

(e)

Termination of Service. Subject to the provisions of Sections 10 and 12, the Administrator in its sole discretion shall
determine the effect on an Award of the Disability, death, or other Termination of Service or change in the employment
or other status of a Participant and the extent to which, and the period during which, the Participant, or the Participant’s
legal representative, conservator, guardian or Designated Beneficiary, may exercise rights under the Award.

(f)

Withholding. The Company shall have the authority and the right to deduct or withhold, or require a Participant to remit
to the Company, an amount sufficient to satisfy federal, state, local and foreign taxes (including applicable income and
payroll taxes) required by law to be withheld with respect to any taxable event concerning a Participant arising as a
result of the Plan. The Administrator may in its sole discretion and in satisfaction of the foregoing requirement allow a
Participant to elect to have the Company withhold shares of Common Stock otherwise issuable under an Award (or
allow the surrender of shares of Common Stock). The number of shares of Common Stock which may be so withheld or
surrendered shall be limited to the number of shares which have a Fair Market Value on the date of withholding or
repurchase equal to the aggregate amount of such liabilities based on the minimum statutory withholding rates for
federal, state, local and foreign income tax and payroll tax purposes that are applicable to such supplemental taxable
income, except that, to the extent that the Company is able to withhold or receive surrendered shares of Common Stock
having a Fair Market Value that exceeds the applicable minimum statutory withholding tax without financial accounting
implications or the Company is withholding in a jurisdiction that does not have a minimum statutory withholding tax,
the Company may withhold or allow the surrender of such number of shares of Common Stock (up to the number of
shares having a Fair Market Value equal to the applicable maximum individual statutory rate of tax (determined by, or in
a manner approved by, the Company)) as the Company shall determine in its sole discretion to satisfy the tax liability
associated with any Award. The Administrator shall determine the fair market value of the Common Stock, consistent
with applicable provisions of the Code, for tax withholding obligations due in connection with a broker-assisted cashless
Option or Stock Appreciation Right exercise involving the sale of shares to pay the Option or Stock Appreciation Right
exercise price or any tax withholding obligation.

(g)

Payment. The Administrator shall determine the methods by which payments shall be made by any Participant with
respect to any Awards granted under the Plan, including, without limitation:
(i)

in cash or by check, payable to the order of the Company;

(ii)

except as the Administrator may otherwise provide in an option agreement, by (A) delivery of an irrevocable
and unconditional undertaking by a creditworthy broker to deliver promptly to the Company sufficient funds to
pay the exercise price and/or any required tax withholding, or (B) delivery by the Participant to the Company of
a copy of irrevocable and unconditional instructions to a creditworthy broker to deliver promptly to the
Company cash or a check sufficient to pay the exercise price and/or any required tax withholding, provided, in
either case, that delivery of such required payments is then made to the Company upon settlement of such sale;

(iii)

when the Common Stock is registered under the Exchange Act, by delivery of shares of Common Stock owned
by the Participant valued at their Fair Market Value, provided (A) such method of payment is then permitted
under applicable law, (B) such Common Stock, if acquired directly from the Company, was owned by the
Participant for such minimum period of time, if any, as may be established by the Administrator in its discretion
and (C) such Common Stock is not subject to any repurchase, forfeiture, unfulfilled vesting or other similar
requirements;

(iv)

to the extent permitted by applicable law and by the Administrator, by payment of such other lawful
consideration as the Administrator may determine; or

(v)

by any combination of the above-permitted forms of payment.

(h) Accrued Dividends. Unless otherwise provided in the applicable Award Agreement, any dividends (whether paid in cash,

stock or property) declared and paid by the Company with respect to shares of Restricted Stock or Dividend Equivalents
granted with respect to Restricted Stock Units or other Awards (either,

“Accrued Dividends”) shall be paid to the Participant only if and when such shares become free from the restrictions on
transferability and forfeitability that apply to such shares or, in the case of a Restricted Stock Unit or other Award, the
Award vests and the shares are delivered to the Participant. In addition, Accrued Dividends with respect to an Award with
performance-based vesting that are based on dividends paid prior to the vesting of such Award shall be paid out to the
Participant only to the extent that the performance-based vesting conditions are subsequently satisfied and the Award vests.
Each payment of Accrued Dividends will be made no later than the end of the calendar year in which the dividends are paid
to stockholders of that class of stock or, if later, the 15th day of the third month following the lapsing of the restrictions on
transferability and the forfeitability provisions applicable to the Restricted Stock Award. No interest will be paid on Accrued
Dividends.

14.

(i)

Fractional Shares. No fractional shares of Common Stock shall be issued pursuant to Awards granted under the Plan,
and the Administrator shall determine, in its sole discretion, whether cash shall be given in lieu of fractional shares or
whether such fractional shares shall be eliminated by rounding down.

(j)

Amendment of Award. Except as provided in Sections 5 and 6, the Administrator may amend, modify or terminate any
outstanding Award, including but not limited to, substituting therefor another Award of the same or a different type and
changing the date of exercise or realization, provided that the Participant’s consent to such action shall be required
unless the Administrator determines that the action, taking into account any related action, would not materially and
adversely affect the Participant.

(k)

Conditions on Delivery of Stock. The Company will not be obligated to deliver any shares of Common Stock pursuant to
the Plan or to remove restrictions from shares previously delivered under the Plan until (i) all conditions of the Award
have been met or removed to the satisfaction of the Company, (ii) in the opinion of the Company’s counsel, the shares
of Common Stock are covered by an effective registration statement or applicable exemption from registration and all
other legal matters in connection with the issuance and delivery of such shares have been satisfied, including any
applicable securities laws and any applicable stock exchange or stock market rules and regulations, and (iii) the
Participant has executed and delivered to the Company such representations or agreements as the Company may
consider appropriate to satisfy the requirements of any applicable laws, rules or regulations.

(l)

Book Entry. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, unless otherwise determined by the Administrator or
required by any applicable law, rule or regulation, the Company shall not deliver to any Participant certificates
evidencing shares of Common Stock issued in connection with any Award and instead such shares of Common Stock
shall be recorded in the books of the Company (or, as applicable, its transfer agent or stock plan administrator).

(m)

Acceleration. Except as otherwise provided in the Plan, the Administrator may at any time provide that any Award shall
become immediately exercisable in full or in part, free of some or all restrictions or conditions, or otherwise realizable in
full or in part, as the case may be.

Miscellaneous
(a)

No Right To Employment or Other Status. No person shall have any claim or right to be granted an Award, and the grant
of an Award shall not be construed as giving a Participant the right to continued employment or any other relationship
with the Company. The Company expressly reserves the right at any time to dismiss or otherwise terminate its
relationship with a Participant free from any liability or claim under the Plan, except as expressly provided in the
applicable Award.

(b)

No Rights as Stockholder. Subject to the provisions of the applicable Award, no Participant or Designated Beneficiary
shall have any rights as a stockholder with respect to any shares of Common

Stock to be distributed with respect to an Award until becoming the record holder of such shares. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, in the event the Company effects a split of the Common Stock by means of a stock dividend and the exercise
price of and the number of shares subject to such Option are adjusted as of the date of the distribution of the dividend
(rather than as of the record date for such dividend), then an optionee who exercises an Option between the record date
and the distribution date for such stock dividend shall be entitled to receive, on the distribution date, the stock dividend
with respect to the shares of Common Stock acquired upon such Option exercise, notwithstanding the fact that such
shares were not outstanding as of the close of business on the record date for such stock dividend.
(c)

Approval of Plan by Stockholders. The Plan shall be submitted for the approval of the Company’s stockholders within
twelve (12) months after the date of the Board’s initial adoption of the Plan. If the Plan is not approved by the
Company’s stockholders, (i) it will not become effective, (ii) no Awards shall be granted thereunder, and (iii) the Prior
Plan will continue in full force and effect in accordance with its terms. Upon the approval of the Plan by the Company’s
stockholders, the Plan shall become effective and any awards outstanding under the Prior Plan as of the date of such
approval shall remain outstanding and, if applicable, exercisable pursuant to the terms of such individual grants.

(d)

Term of Plan. No Awards shall be granted under the Plan on or after the Expiration Date. Any Awards that are
outstanding on the Expiration Date shall remain in force according to the terms of the Plan and the applicable Award
Agreement.

(e)

Amendment of Plan. The Board or the Committee may amend, suspend or terminate the Plan or any portion thereof at
any time; provided that, to the extent required by Section 162(m), no Award granted to a Participant that is intended to
comply with Section 162(m) after the date of such amendment shall become exercisable, realizable or vested, as
applicable to such Award, unless and until such amendment shall have been approved by the Company’s stockholders if
required by Section 162(m) (including the vote required under Section 162(m)); and provided further that, without
approval of the Company’s stockholders, no amendment may (i) increase the number of shares authorized under the
Plan (other than pursuant to Section 11), (ii) materially increase the benefits provided under the Plan, (iii) materially
expand the class of participants eligible to participate in the Plan, (iv) expand the types of Awards provided under the
Plan or (v) make any other changes that require stockholder approval under the rules of NASDAQ (or other securities
exchange or automated quotation system on which shares of Common Stock are listed, quoted or traded). No
amendment, suspension or termination of the Plan shall, without the consent of the Participant, impair any rights or
obligations under any Award theretofore granted or awarded, unless the applicable Award Agreement itself otherwise
expressly so provides. No Awards may be granted or awarded under the Plan during any period of suspension or after
termination of the Plan.

(f)

Provisions for Foreign Participants. The Administrator may modify Awards or Options granted to Participants who are
foreign nationals or employed outside the United States or establish subplans or procedures under the Plan to recognize
differences in laws, rules, regulations or customs of such foreign jurisdictions with respect to tax, securities, currency,
employee benefit or other matters.

(g)

Compliance with Section 409A. Except as provided in individual Award Agreements initially or by amendment, if and to
the extent (A) any portion of any payment, compensation or other benefit provided to a Participant pursuant to the Plan
in connection with his or her Termination of Service constitutes “nonqualified deferred compensation” within the
meaning of Section 409A, and (B) the Participant is a specified employee as defined in Section 409A(a)(2)(B)(i) of the
Code, in each case as determined by the Company in accordance with its procedures, by which determinations the
Participant (through accepting the Award) agrees that he or she is bound, such portion of the payment, compensation or
other benefit shall not be paid before the day that is six months plus one day after the date of “separation from service”
(as determined under Section 409A) (the “New Payment Date”),

except as Section 409A may then permit. The aggregate of any payments that otherwise would have been paid to the
Participant during the period between the date of separation from service and the New Payment Date shall be paid to the
Participant in a lump sum on such New Payment Date, and any remaining payments will be paid on their original
schedule.
(h)

Governing Law. The provisions of the Plan and all Awards made hereunder shall be governed by and interpreted in
accordance with the laws of the State of Delaware, without giving effect to any choice or conflict of law provision or
rule (whether of Delaware or any other jurisdiction) that would cause the application of laws of any jurisdiction other
than those of Delaware.

EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF THE CEO PURSUANT TO SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT RULES 13a-14(a) OR 15d-14(a) AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Liam K. Griffin, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Skyworks Solutions, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d15(f)) for the registrant and have:
a)

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
c)

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: August 7, 2019
/s/ Liam K. Griffin
Liam K. Griffin
President and Chief Executive Officer

EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF THE CFO PURSUANT TO SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT RULES 13a-14(a) OR 15d-14(a) AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Kris Sennesael, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Skyworks Solutions, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d15(f)) for the registrant and have:
a)

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
c)

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.
Date: August 7, 2019
/s/ Kris Sennesael
Kris Sennesael
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

EXHIBIT 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF
2002
In connection with the quarterly report of Skyworks Solutions, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 28, 2019 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Liam K. Griffin, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to
the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

/s/ Liam K. Griffin
Liam K. Griffin
President and Chief Executive Officer
August 7, 2019

EXHIBIT 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF
2002
In connection with the quarterly report of Skyworks Solutions, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 28, 2019 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Kris Sennesael, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to
the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

/s/ Kris Sennesael
Kris Sennesael
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
August 7, 2019

